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> Profile

TRUMPF Group
The Company

The high-technology company  
TRUMPF offers production solutions 
in the machine tool, laser and  
electronics sectors. We are driving 
digital connectivity in manufac-
turing industry through consulting, 
platform and software offers. As 
an independent, family-owned 
company, we think and act long-
term, and our desire to shape the 
future has made us a guarantor  
of continuous innovative strength.
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> At a Glance

TRUMPF Group
Figures

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 Change 
from 

 2014/15

Sales in € millions 2,586.8 2,717.0 2,808.5 3.4%

Overseas share in percent 75.0 79.1 78.7

Orders received In € millions 2,702.4 2,818.3 2,793.3 – 0.9%

Income before taxes In € millions 248.4 357.1 303.1 – 15.2%

Net operating margin before taxes in percent 9.6 13.1 10.8

Net income for the year In € millions 193.3 270.8 235.1 – 13.3%

Expenditure on fixed assets In € millions 124.8 129.4 137.6 6.3%

Expenditure on research 
and development In € millions 243.3 265.1 296.2 11.7%

Balance sheet total In € millions 2,287.2 2,708.5 2,839.4 4.8%

Equity In € millions 1,065.4 1,383.8 1,476.9 6.7%

Equity ratio in percent 46.6 51.1 52.0

Economic equity* In € millions 1,327.0 1,642.1 1,773.9 8.0%

Economic equity ratio in percent 58.0 60.6 62.5

Employees on June 30 number 10,914 10,873 11,181 2.8%

Personnel expenses In € millions 722.9 793.1 817.8 3.1%

* Equity capital plus non-current shareholder loans



> Business Activities

  
MACHINE TOOLS

LASER TECHNOLOGY/
ELECTRONICS

LASERS FOR PRODUCTION TECHNOLOGY

Cutting, welding, marking and surface treatment: For every 
industrial application, we have the right laser and the right 
technology to manufacture products innovatively and cost 
effectively. Whether on a macro, micro or nano scale, we  
address our customers’ individual needs and accompany them 
with system solutions, software tools, application expertise, 
and consulting.

High technology would not be possible without a supply of 
processing power. Our generators provide our customers with 
electricity for induction heating, plasma and laser excitation, 
in the necessary form with regard to frequency and power.

MACHINE TOOLS FOR FLEXIBLE SHEET METAL  
AND TUBE PROCESSING

The largest area of activity at TRUMPF comprises various ma-
chine tools for flexible sheet metal and tube processing. Our 
portfolio includes systems for bending, punching, combined 
punch and laser processing, laser cutting, and laser weld-
ing applications. We offer our customers machines and au-
tomation solutions tailored precisely to their requirements, 
together with consulting, financing and many more services 
enabling them to manufacture their products economically, 
reliably and in high quality. With our software solutions we 
support them in all sheet metal processing tasks, from design 
to complete production control.

7,355  
EMPLOYEES 

2,957  
EMPLOYEES 

€2.52 billion
SALES

€1.01 billion
SALES

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 Change 
from 

 2014/15

Sales in € millions 2,586.8 2,717.0 2,808.5 3.4%

Overseas share in percent 75.0 79.1 78.7

Orders received In € millions 2,702.4 2,818.3 2,793.3 – 0.9%

Income before taxes In € millions 248.4 357.1 303.1 – 15.2%

Net operating margin before taxes in percent 9.6 13.1 10.8

Net income for the year In € millions 193.3 270.8 235.1 – 13.3%

Expenditure on fixed assets In € millions 124.8 129.4 137.6 6.3%

Expenditure on research 
and development In € millions 243.3 265.1 296.2 11.7%

Balance sheet total In € millions 2,287.2 2,708.5 2,839.4 4.8%

Equity In € millions 1,065.4 1,383.8 1,476.9 6.7%

Equity ratio in percent 46.6 51.1 52.0

Economic equity* In € millions 1,327.0 1,642.1 1,773.9 8.0%

Economic equity ratio in percent 58.0 60.6 62.5

Employees on June 30 number 10,914 10,873 11,181 2.8%

Personnel expenses In € millions 722.9 793.1 817.8 3.1%
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DR. PHIL . NICOLA LEIBINGER-KAMMÜLLER
PRESIDENT AND CHAIRWOMAN OF THE MANAGING BOARD

E D I T O R I A L

F I L I G R E E

A deserted rocky landscape, fissured into countless sections. The cover picture of this year‘s 
Annual Report takes a playful look at shapes and structures that took a very long time to 
form. What we see could, with a bit of imagination, also be a piece of tree bark. Or a piece 
of metal, its surface structure suddenly revealed under an electron microscope.

Even seemingly inanimate materials exert a special fascination when we examine them 
attentively. The concept of there being a “master plan” behind all manifestations is far more 
ancient than the possibilities offered by today’s photography or microscopy. Even during 
Antiquity, people knew that the stars and the tiniest atoms had a special affinity because of 
their filigree structure.

Admittedly, this day and age is not exactly the time to contemplate such things. Conditions 
during this past fiscal year could hardly have been more dramatic. Terrorism reared its ugly 
head, also in Europe. Following the war in Ukraine, the media were dominated by reports 
on the mass exodus of millions, mainly from Syria. Europe is still arguing even now about 
how it will tackle all these challenges. The Brexit referendum early this summer has reflected 
a degree of public distrust not only of state institutions but also of the media.

The economic slowdown in China and Brazil, and the sanctions against Russia did not leave 
TRUMPF unscathed. Overall, this past fiscal year was full of more uncertainties than we have 
had for a very long time. Against this background, it is all the more impressive therefore 
that the TRUMPF Group registered a moderate increase in sales of three percent. Income before 
taxes was a very positive €303 million, and the net operating margin was 10.8 percent.

This was due not only to important strategic decisions made within the company but also to 
our intuitive feel for the smallest details as well as for upcoming trends. Our slogan and motif 
for this Annual Report from the Icelandic Landmannalaugar seem at first glance to be out 
of step with the fast pace of the present day, but we chose them on purpose. Recognizing what 
is essential, and acting upon that, remains the basis of what we do.

In the following, I wish you an inspiring visual journey through the world of our research 
and technology development. It is based on several pillars, each presented in individual chapters. 
In the middle of the Annual Report, for the first time, you will find an integrated report on 
Corporate Responsibility at TRUMPF.
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 The research and development strategy of TRUMPF forms the con-
ceptual framework for the following pages. It rests on four pillars, 
each presented in individual chapters. The first is selective vertical 
integration – that is, producing everything ourselves in key technolo-
gies, such as diode production, so that expertise is protected and  
all the elements of the overall system are coordinated. The second 
pillar consists of responding to trends very early on – as in the case of  
Industry  4.0, which TRUMPF began working on long before the  
phenomenon became a buzzword. Thirdly, TRUMPF offers great tech-
nological breadth in its core sectors and is actually defining the tech-
nological state of the art – as exemplified by a revolutionary new laser 
machine. The fourth and final pillar is the entrepreneurial sustain-
ability of a family-owned company – as becomes clear in the chapter 
Corporate Responsibility, as well as in the Group Management Report.
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  Gold is the color of laser diodes – because gold 
is an important material for harnessing the luminosity 
of these tiny semiconductor crystals. There are fine 
gold wires for the power supply, for instance, or gold-
plated metal blocks for the cooling system. This list 
of valuable ingredients is supplemented by high- 
precision micro-optics, that point the laser beam in 
precisely the right direction. Not forgetting the diode 
bars themselves, that consist of a large number of 
optical waveguides.

  This results in an overall package, that represents 
key technology for TRUMPF. The high-tech company 
conducts tireless research into further increasing the 
efficiency of its lasers by means of semiconductor 
diodes. In cleanrooms and laboratories, employees 
experiment with the best possible structures, examine 
the individual elements under the microscope, cal-
culate, sketch, and use wires and cables to make laser 
beams ever more brilliant and powerful. From the indi-
vidual wires right through to the complete direct-diode 
laser itself, everything originates from the company’s 
own expertise and is built at its own production sites. 
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What is TRUMPF’s core compe-
tency? To bundle and to focus laser 
light so powerfully that it can even 
cut through several centimeters of 
thick steel. TRUMPF can do a lot more 
than that of course: It can build intel-
ligent optics, unprecedented machine 
concepts, and amplification systems 
for state-of-the-art exposure tools. It 
can write industrial software, weld 
plastics, bend sheet metal, manufac-
ture punching tools, develop robots, 
and bring connectivity to production 
processes. 

At the end of the day, however, a 
large number of applications and 
projects involve the use of a laser at 
some stage or other. Laser-relevant 
products account for a good two 
thirds of TRUMPF sales – and of those 
lasers, a further two thirds are cur-
rently equipped with laser diodes. 
These diodes, also known as semicon-
ductor lasers, are related to light-emit-
ting diodes (LEDs) and generate laser 
radiation. This in turn is used in 
TRUMPF disk and fiber lasers as pump 
light, that excites and amplifies the 
actual laser beam.

This is how it works: The laser-ac-
tive core of the disk and fiber laser is 
a tiny solid – a crystal disk or a quartz-
glass fiber. The radiation of the diode 
laser is directed onto the solid, that 
stores the light for a fraction of a sec-
ond. This process is referred to by 
experts as pumping. Once sufficient 
pump light has been absorbed, an 
intense, focused beam leaves the solid, 
enabling all the applications provided 
by TRUMPF Laser: cutting, welding, 
soldering, coating, material deposi-
tion and material ablation.

This is one reason why diode lasers 
are so important for TRUMPF. The 
other is that diode lasers are now 
powerful enough to directly generate 
a sufficient amount of laser radiation 
for industrial purposes. Here, the 
radiation from several diodes is bun-
dled via optical elements into an 
increasingly intense beam. In welding, 
soldering and surface applications, 
these lasers – TRUMPF calls them  
TruDiode lasers – are already deliver-
ing excellent results, with up to six 
kilowatts of laser power. The copper 
sheaths covering many kilometers 
that protect bundled wires inside 
transcontinental cables from water 
pressure, for example, are welded 
together using diode lasers. So are 
needles for use in syringes: In this 
case, the tiny metal tubes are less than 
two millimeters in diameter, with 
walls just 0.05 millimeters thick.

E F F I C I E N C I E S  O F  F I F T Y  P E R C E N T
The next goal: industry-standard 

diode lasers for cutting applications. 
Cutting thick metal plate requires a 
highly focused laser beam with the 
diameter of a single human hair. This 
is why TRUMPF developers are work-
ing on efficiently integrating more and 
more power from individual semicon-
ductor laser diodes into an ever more 
brilliant beam – with increasing suc-
cess. In terms of their power density 
and conversion rate of electricity into 
light, diode lasers from TRUMPF are 
among the most powerful in the 
world. The company’s researchers are 
constantly setting new records in the 
laboratories. One of the secrets here 
is the right structure. In special clean-

rooms, large numbers of diodes are 
created as so-called bars. Together with 
the power supply, they are mounted 
on coolers with filigree internal struc-
tures. This enables as much light as 
possible to be extracted from the 
diodes. Another secret is the use of 
complex micro-optics, that shape and 
rotate the laser beams from the bars, 
intelligently superimposing them. The 
result: the most energy-efficient laser 
beam source in existence! Along with 
their robustness, the biggest advantage 
of direct diode lasers is that they can 
achieve efficiencies of up to 50 percent.

E V E R Y T H I N G  
F R O M  O N E  S O U R C E

Improving laser systems in terms 
of energy efficiency is an important 
strategic goal at TRUMPF, because 
many customers are on the lookout 
for tools that will make production as 
“green” as possible. The diodes are 
thus a key technology in securing the 
company’s competitiveness. TRUMPF’s 
mission is to develop and manufac-
ture all the essential components 
itself: The micro-optics are built in 
Aachen, Germany, the laser diodes in 
Princeton, New Jersey, and the sol-
id-state and direct-diode lasers in 
Schramberg, Germany. Moreover, in 
Berlin, a group of foresighted devel-
opers is attempting to look ten years 
ahead, and to lay the foundations for 
future applications. The nice thing 
about TRUMPF laser systems: The 
components all come from one 
source, are ideally coordinated and 
matched, and are always built with 
the future in mind, which is a TRUMPF 
core competency as well!

THE FUTURE  
BELONGS TO THE DIODE 

031



032



0 2

M A K I N G
I N D U S T R Y  4 . 0  T A N G I B L E





  How can Industry 4.0 actually be visualized? It 
has an infinite number of faces, and no one knows them 
all. Many are inconspicuous – a connected machine 
looks quite similar to an unconnected one. But anyone 
with an eye for detail will discover plenty of evidence 
of digital connectivity at TRUMPF, partly still in a test 
phase, partly in real use already: data goggles that 
help with the sorting of sheet metal parts; screens that 
announce the next manual step to workers in a welding 
cell; diagrams directly on the shop floor providing 
information on utilization, availability and mainte-
nance status; punching tools that utilize a data matrix 
code to find their way from the blank to the customer; 
transportation routes that localize themselves on a 
mobile basis and can be linked with their orders; 
machines that can be remote-controlled. 

  Constantly in use, the numerous little helpers that 
make digital connectivity possible in the first place. 
Sensors, cables, antennas, microchips, 2D codes, 
gateways, radio tags, and scanners are usually  
hidden from view – so placing them in the spotlight 
gives them fresh appeal. 
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Networks, leaves, roots, rocks – fil-
igree structures based on fascinating 
blueprints supplied by nature. Radio 
chips, processors, data cables, sensors 
– filigree components with fascinating 
abilities, created by human beings to 
get one step closer to the cross-linked, 
mutually conditional lifecycles of the 
natural world. To satisfy human needs 
for communication, consumption, 
and industrial production.

Digitally connected processes are 
the human equivalent of biologically 
interconnected circuits. A cosmos of 
information transfer agents, data 
evaluators and process optimizers – 
on the forest floor, the seabed, in the 
personal organization of everyday 
life, or in machine halls. A prime 
motivator for all of us: The urge to 
improve, to work more efficiently, 
and to achieve optimum results with 
minimal effort... all quite natural.

C O N N E C T I V I T Y  F O R  A L L
This is why it is also a logical 

development that new possibilities to 
achieve these aims will soon be reach-
ing and permeating all spheres of life, 
and that TRUMPF, long renowned in 
the industry for its extremely advanced 
production organization, is planning 
to digitally interconnect all its pro-
duction units worldwide over the next 
five years. Just as logically, the com-
pany is helping its customers to plan 
and implement similar projects with 
comprehensive hardware, software 
and consultancy services. A digital 
business platform from the TRUMPF 
Group offers the entire world of 
industrial production the opportunity 
of acquiring, transmitting, storing, 

and analyzing data from production 
processes, and of presenting it in 
small, manageable amounts that 
make sense of it. It is precisely this 
platform that brings together differ-
ent stakeholders along the value chain 
within an open and growing system – 
from sheet metal suppliers, sensor 
manufacturers and control cabinet 
builders to freight forwarders, with 
all the benefits of swarm intelligence.

M A K I N G  T H E  V I R T U A L  T A N G I B L E
The fascinating thing about digital 

connectivity is concurrently its most 
important aspect: the invisible data 
streams that appear to move inde-
pendently, gather together and reas-
semble to receive new instructions. 
Much of this is invisible, and there-
fore hard to imagine. In response to 
calls from all quarters for Indus-
try 4.0 to be made easier to grasp, 
TRUMPF decided to demonstrate its 
increasingly interconnected pro-
duction units within pilot plants for 
the general public, enabling its cus-
tomers to accompany the learning 
process. One approach is to slowly 
and consistently connect already 
existing machines and software sys-
tems with each other, with workpieces 
and with people. The other approach 
is to create everything new and fresh 
from the very outset, designed to fit 
perfectly into the categories of the 
Smart Factory. A TRUMPF demo fac-
tory is currently under construction in  
Chicago; it connects all production 
components vertically and all stake-
holders horizontally in order to 
demonstrate completely new business 
models. Pooling, for example: One 

manufacturing plant operating at full 
capacity simply transfers its order on 
to another where free capacity has 
been reported. Starting in Chicago, 
this can function throughout the 
international TRUMPF group, and 
similarly well between the Demo  
Factory and interested customers – 
and it will eventually work between 
all companies and operations that 
become involved in it and see its  
benefits. In addition to these models, 
Chicago offers a very practical, phys-
ical way to experience Industry 4.0: 
From a walkway, spanning the entire 
machine hall, visitors can admire the 
production connectivity below together 
with the self-propelled transportation 
it utilizes.

B R I N G I N G  H I D D E N  
D E T A I L S  T O  L I G H T

The photos in this set were taken 
from a similar perspective – with the 
aim of making the concept of Indus-
try 4.0 easier to grasp. Firstly, they 
include scenes from modern pro-
duction, with tablets and data goggles 
as work equipment, and with codes 
and chips that render production ele-
ments “intelligent”. These photos 
convey the same kind of joy in work-
ing that many people display when 
using their smartphones each day. 
And secondly, there are those little 
items that make factory connectivity 
possible in the first place: sensors, 
processors, antennas, scanners and 
cameras – often hidden from view, 
but larger than life here. Nestling 
inside motifs from nature, they repre-
sent the objective we all share: to 
keep on developing further.

MAKING 
INDUSTRY 4.0 TANGIBLE 
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  This new machine is a work of art. Laser cutting 
such as the world has never seen before. An abso-
lutely autonomous automatic machine that can solve 
problems that were generally regarded as insoluble 
until now, with all of the components newly designed, 
in harmonious interplay. 

  Together on stage: one soft carpet of brushes  
on top of a movable table; hundreds of small suction 
cups that can make sheet metal parts float; an army 
of tiny pins, precisely nudging up each part from the 
sheet; a movable throat in constant motion beneath 
the laser beam, removing not only metal splashes 
but also small sheet metal parts and placing them 
into containers; a laser cutting head, chasing back 
and forth relentlessly; and a package of sensors, com-
munication interfaces and software that helps the 
machine share its intelligence with other means of 
production. In addition to all of its capabilities,  
the TruLaser Center  7030 is one thing above all – 
beautiful, and a true work of art.
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The TRUMPF mission has always 
been to define the technological state 
of the art in its core sectors. This aspi-
ration is being fulfilled more impres-
sively than ever right now with the 
TruLaser Center 7030. To outsiders 
that might sound like just another 
machine name – but for the experts  
it is a real sensation. A sheet metal 
processing machine that does every-
thing all by itself, while synchronizing 
all the individual steps perfectly – 
hence also a fully automatic machine. 
If that makes you think of a washing 
machine or coffee machine, you will 
soon change your mind when you see 
the sheer size of this laser cutting  
system: The footprint measures 
roughly ten by seven meters, and the 
housing is three meters high. That is 
huge – yet surprisingly compact for a 
machine with the capabilities of the 
TruLaser Center 7030. Other systems 
require just as much space without 
any automation components. 

N E W L Y  D E S I G N E D  
F R O M  S C R A T C H

The new laser machine is only 
available in automated form – any-
thing else would be out of the ques-
tion for a machine concept as produc-
tive as this one. Integrated suction 
cups place metal sheets onto the 
machining table, while others arrange 
the cut pieces autonomously onto  
pallets. They are assisted here by thin 
pins, that push up the respective part 
of the metal sheet from below. Small 
contoured parts exit the machine 
directly via the so-called “SmartGate” 
and can be sorted into different con-
tainers by means of a chute. This 

SmartGate is actually a brilliant devel-
opment in itself: It consists of two 
carriages beneath the sheet, their 
movements synchronized to the laser 
cutting head. The aperture between 
them adapts precisely to the size  
and contours of the sheet metal part 
being cut, and also removes any 
metal splashes or residual material. 
Even these few examples show the 
sophisticated way in which the indi-
vidual system components function 
together.

What is important here is the 
entire system – that is what is so rev-
olutionary about this machine. Rather 
than being a predictable improvement 
on predecessor models, relying on 
conventional machine concepts, or 
making do with a rearrangement of 
existing components, it has been 
newly designed from scratch – and all 
of it from the perspective of the 
machine user.

T H E  P R O B L E M  
W I T H  T H E  S L A T S

“Standing guard” – that’s the term 
machine operators are fond of using 
when they have to stick close to the 
2D laser machine the whole time just 
in case a part tips over and brings the 
whole process to a halt. This is a 
tedious fact of life that has so far  
been tolerated for lack of alternative. 
The problem is caused by the jagged 
metal slats for the sheets. Small parts 
often lie on just a few points of these 
slats – so they can quickly lose their 
balance and tip off. To prevent this 
from happening they are often held 
inside the sheet using tiny connecting 
bars, then separated manually at the 

end, and refinished at the appropriate 
locations.

T H E  D R E A M  M A C H I N E
It had long been clear that this 

material support problem could no 
longer continue. The TRUMPF devel-
opers had begun planning an entirely 
new machine concept – a kind of 
Dream Machine as long ago as 2006. 
For many people the enormous task 
had been a hard nut to crack: Out of 
almost 700 patent applications for 
material support alone during laser 
cutting, not a single one had pre-
vailed. So, for decades, the metal 
sheet had rested motionless on its 
slats while the laser cutting head 
crisscrossed it at high speed.

Within just two years the TRUMPF 
developers solved the problem after 
all – with the aid of a hybrid drive 
concept. Here, the sheet is no longer 
motionless. Instead held securely, it 
slides over the table in the Y direc-
tion, while the cutting head mainly 
moves in the X direction, but with 
an additional axis that allows it to 
move along with the sheet. Superim-
posing all these movements guaran-
tees extremely high dynamics. Since 
the table is equipped with thousands 
of small brushes, the material is 
always well supported with no dan-
ger of tilting over, and can be 
removed without a problem. The 
result: laser cutting that is safer  
than ever, with no need for anyone 
to stand guard any longer. The  
TruLaser Center 7030 can simply be 
left to its own devices – all you need 
to do is stand there and admire it 
from time to time! 

CHANGING THE WORLD 
OF LASER CUTTING FOREVER 
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In the summer of 2016, the Munich-based photographer Manfred Jarisch developed a passion 
for TRUMPF – while still managing to keep an artistic distance of course! Actually he was fas-
cinated by the company’s filigree diode bars – it was love at first sight. His very personal 
interpretation brought a whole new and unexpected lightness to the often cumbersome topic 
of Industry 4.0. And the company’s new surprise machine for laser cutting, which he encoun-
tered in the form of various prototypes and construction stages, inspired him to dig deep 
inside his photographer’s box of tricks. In every single shot, you can sense the fun he had.

The photographer: Manfred Jarisch>
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> Message from the Management

Ladies and Gentlemen,

Following a significant sales increase in the 2014/15 fiscal year, the TRUMPF Group 
grew yet again during fiscal 2015/16. Group-wide sales amounted to €2.81 billion.  
The share in turnover of the Machine Tools division rose slightly to 71.4 percent, while 
that of the Laser Technology/Electronics division fell moderately to 28.6 percent.  
Even though Electronics registered negative growth here in particular, recent months 
clearly indicate that the company’s management and employees have achieved a  
successful turnaround.

While the strength of the Swiss franc negatively impacted our foreign business, we were 
able to benefit from the favorable euro exchange rate in the sale of our machine tools 
and lasers. We still felt the effects of the slowdown in the Chinese economy in particular, 
and also of slower growth in the US. By the closing date of June 30, 2016, however,  
the Brexit vote and also the political developments in Turkey no longer had an impact 
on sales and earnings.

There were positive developments in several European regional markets as in Spain and 
France. In Germany, sales increased by more than five percent, to almost €600 million – 
making Germany once again our company’s largest single market. TRUMPF also scored 
significant sales increases in Japan, South Korea and the Asia-Pacific region. In China, 
our sales declined slightly.

TRUMPF pressed ahead with targeted future investments and acquisitions as well as 
with the structural expansion of its sites in Germany and abroad. This included the 
construction of our state-of-the-art logistics center at our headquarters in Ditzingen 
and a showroom in Chicago, both of which are due to open in 2017. Our intention is 
to extend our leading position in the area of digitally connected production. We also 
founded a venture capital company, aimed at supporting promising new business ideas.

Despite the adverse global economic conditions, the number of employees in the Group 
grew by 2.8 percent to 11,181, with more than half that figure employed in Germany.

And here, may I express my sincere thanks to our employees for a good fiscal year 
2015/16! The past months were marked by a high degree of uncertainty. We responded 
to temporary declines in our order intake with flexible time management, and it was 
their cooperation that made that possible!

My thanks also go to our customers and business partners throughout the world  
who once again placed their trust in us and, with their many stimulating suggestions, 
played a key role in our continued growth.

 
Ditzingen, in October 2016

DR. PHIL . NICOLA LEIBINGER-KAMMÜLLER
PRESIDENT AND CHAIRWOMAN OF THE MANAGING BOARD
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> Supervisory Board Report

Ladies and Gentlemen, 

TRUMPF ended the financial year 2015/16 with very good results. In an increasingly 
demanding economic environment, the company achieved a new sales record and raised 
its net operating margin once again, that is if the one-time effect arising from the sale 
of the Medical Technology division in 2014/15 is factored out. The strategy of growth 
through innovation, regional diversification, targeted acquisitions in our core businesses, 
and investments in new business sectors such as Industry 4.0 has proved successful and 
will be continued.

The Supervisory Board exercised the responsibilities incumbent on it with due skill,  
care and diligence in accordance with statutory regulations. Communication between 
the Managing Board and the Supervisory Board was constantly close and effective.  
The Chairwoman of the Managing Board informed the Supervisory Board regularly  
and promptly of all events of significance. The Supervisory Board met three times  
during the period under review during which it dealt comprehensively with the strategy 
of the divisions, the strategy of research and development, the new fields of EUV and 
Industry 4.0, brand management, IT security, risk and compliance management, as well 
as employee satisfaction and the new Work Alliance 2021. Regular points of consultation 
were the Company’s business policy, budget monitoring, and all significant investment 
and acquisition projects.

The annual balance of accounts, the consolidated financial statements and the group 
management report were audited by Ernst & Young GmbH Wirtschaftsprüfungs-
gesellschaft, Stuttgart, and each section was issued with a clean audit certificate. After 
completing its own audits of the annual balance of accounts, the proposed appropria-
tion of earnings, the consolidated financial statement, as well as the group management 
report, the Supervisory Board has accepted without objection the annual balance of 
accounts and the consolidated financial statement as presented by the Managing Board. 

The Supervisory Board thanks the Managing Board and all employees worldwide for 
their hard work and personal contributions to the success of the company. We also thank 
the works council representatives for their good cooperation.

Ditzingen, in October 2016

DR. RER. NAT. JÜRGEN HAMBRECHT
CHAIRMAN OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
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> Company Information

Managing and Supervisory Board

Managing Board

Dr. phil. Nicola Leibinger-Kammüller
President and Chairwoman of the Managing 
Board of TRUMPF GmbH + Co. KG 
Responsible for strategic development, 
corporate communication, brand management, 
real estate, facilities, legal affairs and mergers 
and acquisitions, sustainable development  
and security

Dr.-Ing. E.h. Peter Leibinger
Vice Chairman of the Managing Board  
of TRUMPF GmbH + Co. KG  
and head of the Laser Technology/ 
Electronics division 
Responsible for research and development

Dr.-Ing. Mathias Kammüller
Executive Vice President of  
TRUMPF GmbH + Co. KG  
and head of the Machine Tool division 
Responsible for production, quality and  
process management, and purchasing,  
with regional responsibility for China

Dr. rer. pol. Lars Grünert
Chief Financial Officer of  
TRUMPF GmbH + Co. KG 
Responsible for finance, financial services  
and information technology, with regional 
responsibility for North America

Dr. rer. soc. Gerhard Rübling
Executive Vice President of  
TRUMPF GmbH + Co. KG  
and Labor Director 
Responsible for human resources, sales and 
services, with regional responsibility for 
Europe, Central/South America and Asia 
(China excepted)

Partners

Family Leibinger
95.0 percent

Berthold Leibinger Stiftung GmbH*
5.0 percent

Supervisory Board

Dr. rer. nat. Jürgen Hambrecht
Neustadt an der Weinstraße 
Chairman of the Supervisory Board of 
Berthold Leibinger GmbH, Ditzingen  
Chairman of the Supervisory Board of BASF SE, 
Ludwigshafen

Renate Luksa **
Vaihingen/Enz 
Vice Chairwoman of the Supervisory Board of 
Berthold Leibinger GmbH, Ditzingen  
Senior Chairman of the Works Council of 
TRUMPF Werkzeugmaschinen GmbH + Co. KG, 
Ditzingen

Werner Bruker **
Lauterbach 
Chairman of the Works Council of  
TRUMPF Laser GmbH, Schramberg

Dr.-Ing./U.Cal. Markus Flik
Stuttgart 
Chief Executive Officer of  
CHIRON-WERKE GmbH & Co. KG, 
Tuttlingen

Stefan Fuchs
Hirschberg 
Chairman of the Board of Management of 
Fuchs Petrolub SE, Mannheim

Prof. Dr. rer. pol. Hermut Kormann
Ulm 
Former Chairman of the Board of  
Management of Voith AG, Heidenheim

Prof. Dipl.-Ing./M. Arch. Regine Leibinger
Berlin 
Architect, Barkow Leibinger, Berlin

Monika Lersmacher **
Kornwestheim 
Union Secretary of the IG Metall Trade Union 
Baden-Württemberg, Stuttgart

Martin Röll **
Tübingen 
Second Authorized Representative of  
IG Metall Trade Union Stuttgart, Stuttgart

Jürgen Schäfer **
Weinstadt 
Director Corporate Department  
Real Estate and Facilities,  
TRUMPF Immobilien GmbH + Co. KG, 
Ditzingen

Joachim E. Schielke
Backnang 
Former Chairman of the Board of  
Management Baden-Württembergische Bank, 
Stuttgart,  
Former Member of the Board of Management 
Landesbank Baden-Württemberg, Stuttgart

Harald Weihbrecht-Betz**
Trochtelfingen 
Group Leader Production Unit Machine 
Assembly, TRUMPF Werkzeug- 
maschinen GmbH + Co. KG, Hettingen

* Indirectly via Berthold Leibinger Beteiligungen GmbH / ** Employee representative
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Leadership makes  
values work
TRUMPF is a family company. We think long-term 
and act responsibly – out of conviction. With an  
HR policy that is respectful and appreciative, invest-
ments in the future, the careful use of resources, 
and a dedicated commitment to training and edu-
cation that creates opportunities, we live out that 
conviction every day.

Future-Oriented Management
Four values describe what makes TRUMPF special, and how we act: independent, open, convincing 
and strong. For a company with more than 11,000 employees at 71 locations worldwide, having 
those values practiced everywhere in the same way is by no means a matter of course. In 2014 we 
established a new management structure designed to strengthen our divisions and the central 
departments. These support structures contribute toward the same values being applied across the 
entire TRUMPF Group, and support every manager in acting in an exemplary manner.

The TRUMPF Compliance Program that we launched in 2009, with its associated code of conduct, 
forms a good basis for this. It encourages all employees worldwide to strictly observe laws and 
legislation. Every employee with computer access is required to complete an e-learning course in 
anti-corruption and anti-trust law, and managers and employees from purchasing and sales will 
undergo additional face-to-face training. 

A newly-established central department ensures that the commitment to sustainability and security 
pervades all the company’s processes worldwide. It reports directly to the Chairwoman of the 
Managing Board, and comprises occupational safety, corporate and information security, energy 
management and environmental management. Ultimately, however, even the best process guidelines 
do not constitute “responsible corporate governance” in their own right. Good corporate culture 
is created through a synthesis of governance structures and people with values.
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> Life and work

Change is a key aspect of numerous measures at our company – and that goes for changes in people’s 
lives as well. At TRUMPF, for example, no-one who takes care of children, looks after relatives, or does 
volunteer work need ever take a back seat. Indeed, that kind of experience can constitute a step-
ping-stone on the way to becoming a manager. This guarantees diversity and also creates new models 
– worldwide. Company President Nicola Leibinger-Kammüller summarizes what leadership means 
to her: “People who have the courage and the strength of their convictions are the ones who can move 
the world. They are the type who are needed – and we need them too, to shape industrial change.”

Managers have to be able to recognize others’ 
potential and give them the space to  
realize it. They also have to be strong  

enough to make decisions and abide by  
their consequences.

Marcella Montelatici 
Managing Director TRUMPF Homberger s.r.l., Italy 

Anyone who wants to combine  
family and work has to be flexible. 
And you have to choose both of  
them well – your boss, and your  

partner. The fact that my husband 
takes care of our four children  
gives me the freedom I need.

Annette Doyle 
Managing Director  

TRUMPF Ltd., United Kingdom

You achieve more if you 
make your work  

environment fun, and if 
you’re reliable and honest. 

I want clarity and  
so I openly address any 

problems. Women might 
have more of an intuitive 

feel for interpersonal 
matters.

Ulrike Kreh 
department manager at  

TRUMPF Werkzeugmaschinen, 
Hettingen, Germany
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> Work 4.0

Our innovation promise makes us aim high. To achieve our ambitious goals, we 
need to constantly expand our skills. Our employees have to be able to act quickly 
and always think one step ahead. The preconditions for that: work structures that 
foster creative freedom, and a management culture that focuses on independent 
action. 

The “Work Alliance 2021”, negotiated in 2016, is transforming this idea into new opportunities. 
Concluded initially for the approximately 3,500 employees at our company headquarters – that is, 
the TRUMPF locations in Ditzingen, Hettingen and Gerlingen – the alliance enables a high level of 
mobile and flexible working. This now includes long-term flextime accounts as well as an option 
to do some of one’s work outside the office. How this framework is used depends on individual 
consultation between managers and their employees. A further step on the way to Work 4.0 is our 
new training concept, which transfers responsibility for further qualification to the employees 
themselves. One thousand points – initially corresponding to a value of 1,000 euros – are available 
each year to pay for courses that the employees choose by themselves, in agreement with their 
managers. The more these courses relate to the future topics of TRUMPF, the fewer points they cost.

In addition to professional competence, employees’ social skills are also strengthened in terms of 
their openness and willingness to change. This is why we welcome diversity, and not only in the 
context of leadership development - we also see it as a valuable characteristic of our workforce. 
This valuable diversity not only includes the combination of young and old, men and women, and 
many nationalities, but also people with severe disabilities: In the fall of 2015 we created 15 addi-
tional posts in Ditzingen for the severely disabled.

Workforce structure
Share in 2015

Female employees
Share in 2015

Temporary employment contracts
Share in employment contracts in 2015

19.4%
of the total workforce

12.5%
in management positions

 3.6% Germany

 13.7% Eastern Europe

63.8% Asia

6.7% Part-time ratio in Germany and Western Europe

9.9 years Average length of service with the company

39.7 years Average age of workforce
33.6% 
20.1% 
15.8% 
14.1% 
11.0% 

3.9% 
1.5%

PRODUCTION 

TECHNICAL SERVICE 

DEVELOPMENT 

SALES 

ADMINISTRATION 

TRAINEES 

PURCHASING
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> Innovation & Efficiency

Increased efficiency with machine tools 
The laser cutting machine TruLaser 5030 fiber from 2015 consumes around  
22 percent less power than its predecessor of 2010 with the same laser out-

put. Our engineers achieved this by improving the efficiency of the solid-state  
laser and significantly reducing consumption during non-productive times.

Technology benefits from laser technology 
A comparative life cycle assessment of various joining technologies for  

thick sheet metal connections proves the great advantages of laser welding. 
Since only the energy required for the joining process is applied, and  

the high quality of the weld seam results in the greatest strength while  
requiring significantly less material, laser welding is as energy-efficient as  

it is resource-friendly – and that is what makes it so cost-effective.

TRUMPF sets exemplary standards in the digitalization of industrial processes, and 
accompanies its customers every step of the way toward Industry 4.0. In just a few 
years’ time, the plan is for our entire production to have full digital connectivity. 

It’s not only the processes that are changing, however – we’re also developing new products for the 
world’s rapidly changing markets. Here, we work closely together with startups and universities, 
and invest large sums in research and development. This is because we are convinced of the oppor-
tunities that can open up here - for connectivity between vendors and customers, for even better 
service, and for innovative complete solutions.

Companies like TRUMPF, that reliably offer their customers innovations and delight them with top 

products and technologies, need to have a holistic attitude to quality. Today, energy and resource 
efficiency are an essential part of this. Typically, a new product from TRUMPF is significantly more 
energy efficient than its predecessor. That is the objective in the development process, which is 
verified by measurement methods developed in house.

Even more important than the efficiency of each machine, however, is the overall footprint of the 
application. The energy and material savings that can be realized in manufacturing a product or 
workpiece, and whether refinishing work is no longer required, all depend on the precision of a 
machine or a laser. A further aspect is energy and resource consumption in the use phase of the final 
product. Laser technology, for example, opens up new possibilities for lightweight construction in 
the aerospace and automotive engineering sectors, and the reduced weight results in lower energy 
consumption and less greenhouse gas emissions.
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> Focus on energy

Building close to nature at the Hettingen site
The site at Hettingen blends architecturally into the surrounding landscape of the Swabian Alb.  
Its energy plan is geared toward the best possible use of natural resources for air conditioning,  

lighting and cooling.

We want our operations to be demonstrably energy efficient, which is why we are 
introducing an energy management system compliant with ISO 50001 at all seven
teen of our European production sites. In Germany we had our energy supply  
converted to green power from January 1, 2016 onward, added two more electric cars  
to our vehicle pool in Ditzingen, and set up new charging stations for employees 
and customers alike. 

Group-wide, we have set ourselves the following strategic objectives: to reduce specific energy 
consumption through the development of our processes; to continuously improve the energy-related 
performance of our products; to share best practices within the Group; and to improve the captur-
ing of energy data.

As a quality leader, TRUMPF also has high standards where architecture is concerned. The buildings 
have to be esthetically convincing, communicate an appreciation of our employees and their needs, 
and building management also needs to be sustainable. We use recyclable construction materials, 
integrate renewable energies, and pay close attention to reducing consumption. We share our experi-
ence and our expertise with the industry, in order to generate and maintain momentum for increased 
energy efficiency and sustainability. TRUMPF is a member of the “Blue Competence Initiative” of the 
German Engineering Federation (VDMA) and also one of its Energy Efficiency networks.

ELECTRICITY
115.79 GWh used for:
Production machinery process cooling  
compressed air | Testing and application 
equipment | Training and demonstration 
equipment | Commissioning of our products 
Building and information technology

NATURAL GAS AND HEATING OIL 
45.83 GWh + 2.57 GWh used for:
Space heating and hot water 
Process heat (paint shops)

CO₂ emissions*
Scope 1 and 2

Energy consumption*
164,20 GWh total consumption

1.2%
HEATING OIL 

658 t

17.6%
NATURAL GAS  

9,387 t

81.2%
ELECTRICITY 

43,192 t

*  Energy consumption and CO² emissions recorded for 

the first time in FY 2015/16 for all production sites.
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> Opportunities through education

People can only develop their talents if they participate in society and education. 
The more frequently people are given these opportunities, the more diverse the 
inventiveness of our society and the stronger the forces of cohesion become. For 
TRUMPF, playing a pioneering role here is a question of conviction.

This has been especially relevant ever since it became clear in the summer of 2015 that the number 
of refugees would increase significantly. Around 100 volunteers got together spontaneously at the 
site in Ditzingen to develop a concept for refugee assistance. TRUMPF took over their training, and 
provided premises, materials and a transport vehicle. Five refugees are currently employed at our 
German sites, and three places for refugees who want to do an apprenticeship with us were added 
at the start of training in 2016. We also play a leading role in the integration of people with dis-
abilities: For over 20 years now we have been working closely with the bhz Center for the Disabled 
in Stuttgart. 

Promoting children’s curiosity about science is the aim of the initiative “Knowledge Factory – Com-
panies for Germany e.V.” We founded it in 2005 together with eight leading German companies to 
initiate projects at kindergartens and schools. Over the past ten years, more than 1,800 students 
have attended nearly 2,500 classes at our sites alone. As Vice President of the Donors’ Association 
for Promotion of the Humanities and Sciences in Germany and its ambassador for professional and 
academic training, Nicola Leibinger-Kammüller is personally committed to excellence in young 
people’s education.

Eskandar Odicho
In 2013 Eskandar Odicho fled from Alhassakah (Syria), where  
he had worked as a teacher. The qualified physicist started  
work on October 1, 2015 as a specialist in the Ditzingen Laser  
Application Center.

Habibullah Suhrab
In 2012 the critical journalist Habibullah Suhrab 

was forced to flee Kabul (Afghanistan).  
Since October 1, 2015 he has been working with 

the printed circuit board production team  
in Schramberg.
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TRUMPF
AT  A  G L A N C E

11,181
Employees

5,626
Employees in Germany

5,555
outside Germany

The headcount increased primarily 
in research and development due  
to the expansion of our Industry 4.0 
activities.
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Group Management Report
for the fiscal year 2015/16

Structure and Business Activities
The high-technology company TRUMPF offers production solutions in the machine tool, laser  
and electronics sectors. We are driving digital connectivity in manufacturing industries with 
consulting, platform deals and software solutions. As an independent, family-owned company, 
we think and act long-term, and our desire to shape the future has made us a guarantor of  
continuous innovative strength. We offer our customers future-oriented, reliable production 
solutions – giving them the competitive edge, and enabling lasting success. 

Two divisions – one powerful company

Our two divisions Machine Tools and Laser Technology/Electronics are both under the roof  
of a holding company, TRUMPF GmbH + Co. KG. Our largest area of activity comprises machine 
tools for flexible sheet metal and tube processing. We have machines for bending, punching, 
combined punch and laser processing, and also laser cutting and welding applications. Diverse 
automation solutions and a broad range of software for digitally connected production solutions 
round off the portfolio.

Our product range in laser technology comprises laser systems for the cutting, welding and  
surface treatment of three-dimensional components. We provide high-performance CO2 lasers, 
disk and fiber lasers, direct diode lasers, ultrashort pulse lasers, and also marking lasers and 
marking systems.

The electronics product portfolio includes direct currency, radio and medium frequency generators 
for inductive material heating, surface coating and processing via plasma technology, as well as 
for laser excitation.

Global presence – close to our customers

The TRUMPF Group is represented in all major markets worldwide. We have 71 subsidiaries  
operating in Europe, America and Asia-Pacific. Our production facilities are in Germany, China, 
France, Great Britain, Italy, Japan, Mexico, Austria, Poland, Switzerland, the Czech Republic 
and the USA.

Our headquarters are located in Ditzingen, Germany. Our two main divisions, Machine Tools 
and Laser Technology, are run from there. The Electronics business field is managed from 
Freiburg.
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We support our customers with comprehensive service that covers the entire lifecycle of our 
products. We are a full service provider – ranging from financing, functional expansion and 
technical service to consulting, training and second-hand machinery trade.

Economic Report

Economic Situation

World economy in 2015 driven mainly by private consumption

Global economic momentum remained weak in 2015. According to the International Monetary 
Fund (IMF), growth worldwide was 3.1 percent. In emerging countries, growth reached a value 
of 4.0 percent, and was 1.9 percent in the established industrial nations.

The German economy was stable during 2015, with GDP growth of 1.5 percent. It was con-
sumption, however, that provided the greatest impetus. In historical terms, however, given the 
strong economic situation and the low interest rates, the 3.6 percent increase in equipment 
investment did not represent dynamic development. 

In the eurozone, the economy recovered during 2015 and increased by 1.7 percent. The growth 
in consumer spending was also decisive here. Despite historically low interest rates and a slight 
improvement in business sentiment, investments developed weakly. Exports, however, benefited 
from the weaker euro exchange rate.

The US economy showed robust growth of 2.4 percent in 2015. As in the eurozone it was  
primarily consumer driven.

Japan’s economic output rose by only 0.5 percent, despite expansionary fiscal policies.

The economic situation in China gave cause for concern. The Chinese government continued 
with its change toward the “new normal” of sustainable growth. This resulted in overall eco-
nomic growth of 6.9 percent.

Graphic 01 >
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Change in GDP worldwide  
in percent

The emerging markets were primarily  
responsible for growth. The industrial  
nations made more moderate gains.

3.1

Source: International Monetary Fund
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For the emerging countries in 2015, economic conditions were very mixed. Many countries 
dependent on commodity exports had to cut spending as a result of reduced revenues. This devel-
opment, compounded by several other negative factors, pushed Brazil and Russia into recession.

Machine tool industry grows slightly

In 2015, Germany’s mechanical engineering sector failed to live up to expectations. According  
to the German Engineering Federation (VDMA), production achieved zero growth. Inflation- 
adjusted sales rose slightly by 2.8 percent to €218 billion. Orders received in 2015 exceeded the 
level of the previous year by 1 percent in real terms. This growth applied equally to domestic  
and foreign demand, translating into flat orders again – somewhat unusual for such a cyclical 
sector.

According to the German Machine Tool Builders’ Association (VDW), the German machine tool 
industry continued its slight growth from the previous year. Order intake rose by 1 percent to 
€14.9 billion. Growth stimulus here came primarily from abroad, where orders rose by roughly 
2 percent, while orders in Germany fell by 1 percent relative to the previous year. Production 
rose by 4 percent, from €14.5 billion to €15.1 billion.

Global output for machine tools increased in 2015 by 7 percent to €68.1 billion. China remained 
the largest manufacturer here, with a volume of €16.6 billion, followed by Japan with €12.0 billion 
and Germany with €11.2 billion.

Global market for laser technology somewhat subdued

According to an analysis by Optech Consulting, the global market for laser systems for material 
processing reached a volume of €10.7 billion in 2015 (previous year: €8.8 billion). This strong 
growth was solely attributable to currency effects, however. Viewed in US dollar terms, it  
represents a sideways movement relative to the previous year’s figure of US$11.8 billion.

By contrast, there was an increase in the world market for laser beam sources in material  
processing. Here too, analysis in terms of different currencies is instructive: In euros, there was  
a 22 percent increase to €2.9 billion, while in US dollar terms, the increase was only 2 percent, 
from US$3.15 billion to US$3.2 billion.
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In spite of many uncertainties in the markets, 
TRUMPF was able to increase its sales.

Sales increase:

+ 3.4%

2,808
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For German manufacturers of laser systems, the VDMA reported a production increase of 
12 percent to €962 million. Exports accounted for more than 80 percent of that figure. 

Business Development

Fiscal year 2015/16 good considering the difficulties

The 2015/16 fiscal year was challenging for TRUMPF due to many uncertainties in the markets. 
Nevertheless, we were still able to increase our revenues and achieve a good return on sales.

During the year under review the Group achieved sales of €2.81 billion (previous year: €2.72 bil-
lion). This corresponds to an increase of 3.4 percent. At €2.79 billion, orders received lay roughly 
at the previous year’s level of €2.82 billion. Income before taxes, at €303 million, was below the 
previous year’s level (€357 million). However, the previous year’s figure included the one-off 
effect from the sale of the company’s medical division. Adjusted for that, the result increased by 
6.3 percent. The number of people working for the company rose by 2.8 percent to 11,181 employees 
(previous year: 10,873 employees) worldwide.

A comparison of forecast and reported figures for the fiscal year shows that our goals for fiscal 
2015/16 were overly optimistic. We did manage to increase sales, but not to the extent planned. 
Order intake also remained below our expectations. We just missed our book-to-bill target 
ratio greater than 1. Despite the weak sales growth, however, we managed to achieve a good net 
operating margin. It lies at a very satisfactory 10.8 percent, slightly higher than the level of  
the previous year (10.5 percent) when adjusted for the one-off effect arising from the Medical 
Technology division sale.

Order intake relatively flat

Orders received of €2.79 billion only approximated the level of the previous year. This was 
almost 0.9 percent lower than the previous year’s figure (€2.82 billion). Orders on hand at  
the end of the year under review amounted to €789 million (previous year: €804 million).  
The forward order book lay at 3.2 months, the same level as the previous year.

Machine tools and laser technology on course for growth

Sales at Machine Tools, our largest division, increased by 6.8 percent to €2.52 billion (previous 
year: €2.36 billion).

Graphic 02 >
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Orders received of €2.79 billion approximated  
the level of the previous year.

Development  
in order intake:

– 0.9%

2,793
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The Laser Technology/Electronics division achieved sales growth of 4.6 percent to €1.01 billion 
(previous year: €966 million), exceeding the billion mark for the first time. Decisive for the 
growth of the division, however, was the Laser Technology business field alone, which saw its 
revenues increase by 5.1 percent to €935 million (previous year: €890 million).

In the Electronics business field, in contrast, sales fell again, this time by 9.0 percent to €93 mil-
lion (previous year: €102 million). This was due to a declining internal supply of generators for 
CO2 lasers and general investment restraint in the core markets of glass, displays and industrial 
coatings. The situation was exacerbated by the unfavorable economic environment with weaker 
growth rates in Europe and Asia. Due to the renewed negative sales development we have set up 
a fundamental restructuring and growth concept for this business segment, which is already 
showing initial success.

Sales are consolidated within the divisions.

Division sales shares did not change significantly relative to the previous year. The Machine 
Tools division increased its share in turnover slightly to 71.4 percent (previous year: 70.7 per-
cent). The share of the Laser Technology/Electronics division fell from 28.8 percent to 
28.6 percent.

Sales of laser-related products in the 2015/16 fiscal year amounted to €1.93 billion, or 68.7 per-
cent of total sales.

Highly varied market developments

In Germany, our strongest individual market, we were able to increase our sales. They rose by 
5.2 percent to €597 million (previous year: €568 million). This growth was very important 
because of the weakness of other markets. In Western Europe excluding Germany, our sales rose 
slightly by 0.8 percent to €664 million (previous year: €659 million). In Central and Eastern 
Europe, sales fell by 3.8 percent to €281 million (previous year: €292 million).

The markets in America performed very differently. In Central America, we achieved growth, 
while in South America we registered further declines, mainly due to the ongoing weakness of 
Brazil. There was a sideways movement in North America, but when adjusted for currency 
effects, this was a decrease. Total sales in America fell slightly by 0.8 percent to €485 million 
(previous year: €488 million).

* consolidated within the division

a  /   MACHINE TOOLS 
 2,521 / + 6.8%

b  /    LASER TECHNOLOGY/ 
ELECTRONICS 
 1,010 / + 4.6%

b

a

04Graphic
>

Sales according to divisions*
in € millions

Sales of laser-related products amounted to  
68.7 percent of total sales.
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No uniform trend was evident in the Asia-Pacific region either. Our sales in China fell by 
0.5 percent to €368 million (previous year: €369 million), and by even more when adjusted  
for currency effects. In contrast, we registered significant growth in Japan and in Korea.  
In Japan, the government’s investment promotion program had a positive effect. Overall, 
TRUMPF sales in the Asian-Pacific market rose by 10.9 percent to €770 million (previous  
year: €694 million).

Only slight variation in turnover share 

The growth rates in the regions affected the shares in turnover only slightly. In relation  
to the previous year, Germany increased its share minimally to 21.3 percent (previous year: 
20.9 percent). Europe excluding Germany contributed 33.7 percent to our revenues (previous  
year: 35.0 percent). America remained slightly below the previous year’s level, with the  
region’s share declining to 17.3 percent (previous year: 18.0 percent). The share of overall  
sales of the Asian-Pacific region increased to 27.4 percent (previous year: 25.6 percent).

Results of operations, net assets and financial position 

Results of operations: Net operating margin at a good level 

Income before taxes in the fiscal year 2015/16 was €303 million (previous year: €357 million). 
This represents a decrease of 15.2 percent. The sale of the Medical Technology division in fiscal 
2014/15 had a considerable effect here, however. Adjusting for this, we increased our income  
by 6.3 percent over the previous year. We were also able to keep our net operating margin at the 
very satisfactory level of 10.8 percent. In the previous year, adjusted for the one-off effect from 
the Medical Technology division sale, it was 10.5 percent.

The main drivers of this result were the following:

Overall performance increased in line with the development in sales by 3.2 percent to €2.84 bil-
lion (previous year: €2.75 billion).

Other operating profits decreased by 20.1 percent to €106 million (previous year: €133 million). 
This was mainly due to a decrease in currency gains.
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Income before taxes 
in € millions

Despite a moderate sales growth, we were  
able to achieve a very satisfactory net  
operating margin of 10.8 percent.

Net operating margin 2015/16:

10.8%

303
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The increase in material costs by 0.8 percent to 1.20 billion (previous year: €1.19 billion) lay 
well below the increase in revenues. In terms of overall performance, the material expenditure 
quota thus improved once again, totaling 42.3 percent (previous year: 43.3 percent). Key factors 
here included our Purchasing Excellence program for optimizing procurement processes and condi-
tions, and a change in the product mix.

Personnel expenses rose in the year under review by 3.1 percent to €818 million (previous year: 
€793 million). This was due to the creation of new jobs, especially in future-oriented business 
sectors. The share of expenses for personnel remained at the previous year’s level of 28.8 percent.

Other operating expenses, at €491 million, were slightly above the previous year’s level (€488 mil-
lion). A decline in exchange rate losses was countered by an increase in external performance.

The financial and investment result amounted to €–16 million, approximately the same level as 
the previous year.

Tax expenses amounted to €68 million (previous year: €86 million). The decline was due,  
firstly, to taxation on the sale of Medical Technology during the previous year, and secondly to 
additional tax incentives taken in the USA during the current fiscal year. Taxes on income and 
earnings were at €56 million (previous year: €77 million), while other taxes totaled €12 million 
(previous year: €9 million). 

Net assets and financial position: Higher balance sheet total

The balance sheet total increased by 4.8 percent to €2.84 billion (previous year: €2.71 billion).

Fixed assets rose by 0.7 percent to €958 million (previous year: €951 million). On the tangible 
assets side, investment exceeded depreciation and amortization. The increases resulted mainly 
from investment projects in construction, as well as technological systems and machinery, above 
all in Ditzingen, Hettingen and Neukirch (Germany), in Chicago (USA), and in Yangzhou 
(China).
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Current assets including prepaid expenses increased by 7.1 percent to €1.88 billion (previous 
year: €1.76 billion). This was due to an increase in cash and cash equivalents and short-term 
investments in other assets.

Inventories climbed by 3.6 percent to €612 million (previous year: €591 million), due to the 
addition of finished goods. In particular there was an increase in the inventory of machines that 
we lease to our customers through our sales financing companies. These machines are listed  
in our current assets. The upturn is mainly due to the expansion of our leasing contracts with 
international customers. Receivables and other assets also grew, by 10.1 percent to €717 million 
(previous year: €651 million). This increase resulted primarily from short-term securities,  
representing other assets. The receivables turnover remained at the previous year’s level of 5.0.

Cash and cash equivalents rose by 7.5 percent to €526 million (previous year: €490 million).  
The cashflow statement shows an increase in cash and cash equivalents of €96 million to 
€608 million (previous year: €512 million). The increase is mainly attributable to the cash  
inflow as a result of operations.

Equity rose by 6.7 percent to €1.48 billion (previous year: €1.38 billion). The equity ratio rose 
by 0.9 percentage points to 52.0 percent (previous year: 51.1 percent). The economic equity ratio 
including long-term shareholder loans was 62.5 percent (previous year: 60.6 percent).

Accruals rose by 4.6 percent to €517 million (previous year: €494 million). The change compared 
to the previous year was due to higher pension and other personnel-related provisions. This  
also includes provisions amounting to €3 million for restructuring measures in the Electronics 
business field. The increase in pension provisions was mitigated by the extension of the period 
over which the average interest rate is calculated for discounting.

Liabilities rose by 2.7 percent to €783 million (previous year: €762 million), and liabilities to 
managing partners increased by €59 million to €391 million (previous year: €332 million). 

Trade payables decreased by 7.0 percent to €138 million (previous year: €148 million).
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Other liabilities increased by 16.7 percent from €108 million to €126 million. The increase  
compared to last year is mainly explained by the expansion of the deposit business of TRUMPF 
Financial Services GmbH and by an increase in tax liabilities.

Investments and acquisitions

Investments: Global projects are strengthening our customer focus

In the 2015/16 fiscal year the company increased its investments in tangible and intangible assets 
by 6.3 percent to €138 million (previous year: €129 million).

Real estate and construction expansion projects accounted for 49.8 percent of the total investment 
sum. Plant and machinery were 18.3 percent, office and business equipment 26.2 percent and 
intangible assets 5.7 percent.

A total of 66.0 percent of the investments were in Germany. There was a particular focus here on 
construction projects at our headquarters in Ditzingen, with an investment sum amounting to 
approximately €68 million. We are currently constructing a production building with cleanrooms 
and office space to expand our high-technology production. A state-of-the-art logistics center is 
also being built, covering a total area of 13,000 square meters. Furthermore, we are expanding 
capacity at our German locations in Hettingen, Schramberg and Neukirch.

16.9 percent of our investments were made elsewhere in Europe. We are currently expanding our 
site in Poland. We invested 10.2 percent in America and 6.9 percent in Asia, where a substantial 
proportion went into enlarging our plant at JFY in Yangzhou. We are increasing production and 
office space there, and building a showroom for our customers.

The investment ratio of fixed assets amounted to 4.9 percent (previous year: 4.8 percent). The 
amount invested in tangible and intangible assets of €138 million exceeded depreciation and 
amortization, which lay at €118 million during the year under review (previous year: €109 million).

Acquisitions and startups: strengthening our Industry 4.0 activities

Several acquisitions and foundations were made during the year under review, especially with 
regard to our Industry 4.0 activities. 
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Effective October 1, 2015, AXOOM GmbH, headquartered in Karlsruhe, began operations as  
a wholly-owned subsidiary of TRUMPF. It is developing an open, cloud-based business platform 
and is a central pillar of our digital connectivity solution for manufacturing processes. For  
optimal distribution of this solution, which includes intensive advisory services for our customers, 
we founded AXOOM Solutions GmbH, also based in Karlsruhe, on May 1, 2016.

During the year under review, TRUMPF acquired a majority stake in Xetics GmbH, a Stuttgart- 
based software company specializing in manufacturing execution systems for small and medium- 
sized enterprises. The “Xetics Lean” software, developed by the company, is an important  
addition to the AXOOM platform.

TRUMPF also acquired an interest in the C-Labs Corporation, which is being run from Redmond, 
Washington (USA). C-Labs offers software solutions for the highly secure and easy capture and 
transfer of machine data in the production environment, from machines to factory IT networks, 
as well as the cloud. 

On May 30, 2016, TRUMPF Venture GmbH was founded in Ditzingen. With this company, 
TRUMPF will be investing in global startups in every stage of development, to secure market 
access to disruptive innovations early on. The focus here is on agile technology trends.

Employees

New hires primarily in future sectors

The overall number of employees in the TRUMPF Group increased during the fiscal year 2015/16 
by 2.8 percent to 11,181 employees (previous year: 10,873 employees). TRUMPF’s headcount  
grew primarily through the first-time consolidation of our Indian subsidiary India Metamation  
Software Pvt. Ltd., Chennai, and in research and development, due to the expansion of our 
Industry 4.0 activities.

In Germany, the TRUMPF Group had 5,626 employees on the closing date (previous year: 
5,413 employees) – 3.9 percent more than the year before. Outside of Germany, the number of 
employees increased by 1.8 percent to 5,555 (previous year: 5,460). For the fiscal year 2016/17  
we again expect a slight increase in our headcount.
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In Germany, the TRUMPF Group had 
5,626 employees. Outside of Germany, the  
number of employees increased to 5,555.
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The training of young skilled workers, engineers and business administrators is very important 
to us. During the year under review, 479 young people completed a training course or a co-op 
study program. The training quota in the Group therefore stood at 4.3 percent (previous year: 
4.6 percent).

Company Work Alliance 2021: equipped to meet the challenges of the times

During the year under review, the Managing Board and Works Council settled on a new Company 
Work Alliance for TRUMPF employees in Ditzingen and Hettingen, which came into force on 
July 1, 2016. The alliances established within the company regulate in-house agreements such as 
work schedules and retirement options. The Company Work Alliance 2021 is a response to recent 
changes; higher market volatility, shorter cycles, and smaller batch sizes, are all trends that  
confront the company and its customers with new challenges. Employees are demanding more 
freedom in shaping their working life, to reconcile their professional and personal needs. The 
Alliance, which was negotiated during the year under review, provides very specific answers here.

The plan provides employees with increased mobility, giving them free choice about their work 
location for up to 20 percent of their worktime. The so-called Agile Time System enables agreements 
between employees and management that “loosen up” rigid weekly or monthly working times. 
Instead, individual arrangements can be reached that take only the annual working time into 
account. This makes it even easier to adapt capacity to utilization. A qualification initiative is 
making staff training an even higher priority than before, especially in view of the progressive 
digitalization of all our processes.

Research and Development
High development ratio for unique innovative strength

Expenditure on research and development was further increased during the 2015/16 fiscal year, 
rising by 11.7 percent to €296 million (previous year: €265 million). Our development ratio  
in relation to sales is once again at a very high level of 10.5 percent (previous year: 9.8 percent). 
The number of employees working on new products for TRUMPF rose by 8.1 percent to 1,716 
(previous year: 1,587). 

Our central Research and Development department is driving comprehensive and sustainable 
innovation management beyond the specific operationalization of innovation projects in  
the development sectors of the business fields. Here, we are specifically seeking close ties with 

Graphic 09 >

Graphic 10 >

11/12 15/1612/13 13/14 14/15

09Graphic
>

Research and development 
in € millions

Our development ratio in relation to sales is once 
again at a very high level of 10.5 percent.

Increase in R&D expenditure:

+ 11.7%

243

193

211

265

296

118 TRUMPF  Annual Report 2015/16Group Management Report 



technological centers of excellence worldwide that are relevant to us; these include various insti-
tutes of the Fraunhofer Gesellschaft, MIT, ETH Zurich, the Ferdinand von Braun Institute in 
Berlin, and the Changchun University of Science and Technology in China. In this way, we gain 
insights very early on into high-tech trends that are relevant for us. 

With our global technology scouting we identify startup companies that have business relevance 
for TRUMPF. This can lead to M&A projects complementing the development work or product 
portfolio of one of our divisions, and also flow into our company for venture capital projects, 
which was founded during the year under review. All of this enables long-term and sustainable 
assessment of trends, as well as early entry into high-tech fields important to us. A further key 
aspect of innovation management is the continuous harmonization of development processes, 
methods, structures, and tools. In this way we ensure that our companies can work efficiently on 
complex projects, with digital connectivity across different locations.

Digital connectivity as a leitmotif of innovation activities in the machine tool sector

During the past fiscal year, the development organization in our Machine Tools division was 
restructured. Industry 4.0 requires a far stronger focus on overall solutions connecting the four 
levels: technologies, machines, production solutions and Internet-based business platforms. We 
are now applying this concept to our development organization and simultaneously enhancing 
our modular system, on which every machine will be based in the future. We are implementing 
this in our global R&D network, in line with all of our development locations in Europe,  
America and Asia.

Of all the many innovations in the Machine Tools division, two highly innovative machine  
concepts stand out in particular. During punching and laser cutting, the movement of the sheet 
in one direction, and of the tool in the opposite direction in a so-called hybrid machine, creates 
new possibilities for processing and automation all the way to process-reliable extraction, sorting 
and stacking of parts. Both concepts reflect our intention to embed the machines of the future 
into our customers’ logistics processes in such a way that they save space and are both physically 
and digitally interconnected. This enables them to operate largely autonomously.

The new TruPunch 1000 facilitates entry into punching technology and also allows customers to 
expand their business as required. A later upgrade to a combined TruMatic 1000 with solid-state 
laser, as well as gradual expansion by means of automation solutions, are now possible for the 
very first time.
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The TruLaser Center 7030 is the world’s first fully automated production cell for laser cutting 
with solid-state lasers for sheet thicknesses up to 12.7 millimeters. It requires minimal interven-
tion by the operator, enabling production in largely unsupervised shifts. It also features very 
short throughput times, and its highly innovative automation concept enables process-reliable 
ejection of parts that, until now, were considered impossible to remove automatically because of 
their geometries.

Laser Technology expands its activities in the additive manufacturing sector

We intensified our activities in the additive manufacturing sector during the year under review. 
We are the only company worldwide that can offer both of the relevant technologies for 
3D printing of metal parts – laser metal deposition (LMD) and laser metal fusion (LMF). In  
the LMD sector, also known as laser cladding, we have been established in the market for  
over 15 years. In the LMF sector with the TruPrint 1000 we brought the first machine onto the 
market, and this fall we plan to roll out the second machine: the far larger and more powerful 
TruPrint 3000.

During the year under review we further developed the technical platform of our ultrashort 
pulse lasers, and also presented a new picosecond laser: the TruMicro 2000. With its ultrashort 
pulses, this laser addresses a wide range of different industrial applications, ranging from high- 
quality metal engraving and the cutting of extremely thin film through to the corrosion-free 
marking of medical instruments and chromed plastics. With its ultra-short laser pulses of 0.4 to 
20 picoseconds and simultaneously high pulse energies of 20 microjoules, the TruMicro 2000  
is capable of so-called cold processing. This enables the extremely precise production of, for 
example, smooth surfaces or jet-black markings across all different materials.

New product in the Electronics business field supports power supply from  
renewable energy sources

The new product in the Electronics business field, a bidirectional inverter for the production  
of so-called Redox-flow batteries, will enter the market in 2016. The module converts the  
alternating current of the power network into direct current for the battery, and vice versa. 
Redox flow batteries are a highly promising alternative to lithium-ion batteries and are  
considered the storage technology of the future – in particular for power supplies from renewable 
energy sources. 
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Opportunities and Risks

Risk management

As a leading global technology company, TRUMPF is exposed to a multitude of risks. To respond 
appropriately, we have a sophisticated risk management system in place. A central Risk Manager 
ensures that risks in all areas are regularly identified, evaluated and controlled on a standard 
basis, and that any relationships between the risks are identified. The results are regularly presented 
to management and the supervisory board. Our Corporate Development department defines  
the potential for strategic development. Centrally controlled innovation management along with 
sector the product groups’ supervisory staff in the individual business fields, help identify entre-
preneurial opportunities and risks.

The Group’s managing board, heads of business divisions and central corporate departments are 
informed every month about the assets, finances and earnings. The order intake KPI is updated 
in daily reports. Key financial data and analysis from the controlling department provide the 
basis upon which the Managing Board identifies and evaluates potential risks and takes appro-
priate countermeasures, wherever necessary.

For risk assessment purposes, our company planning includes analyzing alternative scenarios  
of possible trends within the TRUMPF Group. A liquidity reporting system allows us to obtain  
a largely automated, daily company liquidity report. An interest rate and currency committee 
meets monthly at Group level to manage and control cash flow, currency and interest rate risks. 
Risk transparency is further increased by means of market and competitor analyses.

Market opportunities and risks

Our strong international presence enables us to compensate for sluggish growth in individual 
regions. This was made clear during the year under review. The IMF anticipates only slight 
growth in economic output for 2017. The world economy is in an unstable state, and scenarios 
deriving from weaker growth are on the increase. Political factors – such as the prolongation  
of sanctions against Russia, Britain’s decision to leave the European Union, and the changes in 
Turkey – all greatly influence the development of the global economy.
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Although the collapse of many commodity prices has boosted the economies of consumer  
countries, prices have dropped so dramatically that many of the producing countries are now 
struggling with very serious problems. Demand for capital goods from these countries has sig-
nificantly decreased. The depreciation of the euro initially acted as a stimulus in the eurozone, 
but the flow of goods has gradually adapted to the change in exchange rates. The manufacturing 
industry in the United States is suffering from the high dollar; this is affecting exports and 
American market sales, and is making the US industry less investment friendly. Though interest 
rates are still low, the VDMA no longer expects them to further boost investment. 

Due to our strong market position in the machine tools and laser technology fields, along with 
the activities listed below, we are expecting a positive development for our company.

Opportunities offered by Industry 4.0

Industry 4.0 is based on digital business platforms, machines and components equipped with 
sensors and codes, and also intelligent software both inside and around the machines. This 
enables fast and easy digital connectivity for all the phases in the value chain. For several years 
now, step by step, we have developed a complete portfolio for this. Our starting position is 
highly promising because everyone involved – our customers, logistics service providers, suppli-
ers, and IT companies – trusts us. Our digital business platform AXOOM is attracting great  
interest – it is open to all partners and other equipment manufacturers, as well. This is opening 
up an entirely new clientele for us. 

Opportunities offered by EUV

EUV lithography for the mass production of semiconductor chips is on the verge of industrializa-
tion. Several orders for systems have already been received and will influence sales in the coming 
financial year. We are prepared for different scales of the business situation, not only through the 
framework agreement reached with our strategic partner but also through the creation of new 
production space for our subsidiary founded specifically for that business, TRUMPF Laser Systems 
for Semiconductor Manufacturing GmbH.

Opportunities offered by our sales financing

We are constantly extending the financing deals offered by our bank, which we founded in 2014. 
As a result, the level of incoming orders financed by our bank via leasing or lease-purchasing 
rose during the year under review by around one third.
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We can now provide banking services in a total of eight countries: Germany, Belgium, Denmark, 
Great Britain, Ireland, Italy, the Netherlands, and Spain. In other European, American and 
Asian markets we can also enable financing deals with the help of our strategic partners. One 
out of every three customers worldwide chooses TRUMPF Financial Services GmbH to finance 
their new investments.

Financial opportunities and risks

The TRUMPF Group regularly maintains its liquidity through medium and long-term measures. 
We increased our liquidity reserves sharply in relation to the previous year. The liquid funds 
have been invested in the money market for the short term. When investing our liquidity reserves 
we distribute risk by allocating our investments across numerous financial institutions and 
instruments. This has currently enabled us to prevent negative interest. We work exclusively  
with banks that have good credit ratings. We have structured a revolving credit facility with  
our core banks. This has secured a large part of our credit lines at attractive rates until 2022.

Our liquidity reporting system enables us to generate daily liquidity reports for all of our  
subsidiaries. Currency and interest rate risks constitute additional financial exposure. Since the 
eurozone, with a 47.1 percent share of our sales, is our main sales market and we are partly  
able to offset foreign currency payments within the company through our global production alli-
ance and worldwide purchasing, we view our currency risk as limited. Our ongoing currency 
hedging activities are regulated and, for major currencies, handled centrally through the Group’s 
holding company. The Group’s treasury and insurance department and the currency committee 
are responsible for accounts and control. We were able to use the currently weaker euro for 
medium-term currency hedging. Currency hedging for regulated markets is done directly by  
the subsidiaries in close cooperation with the company’s headquarters. This applies, for instance, 
to the Korean won, the Chinese renminbi and the Brazilian real.

Derivative financial instruments at TRUMPF are not used for speculation purposes but exclusively 
 to hedge underlying business transactions. Hedging takes place within the TRUMPF Group com-
panies to cover currency risks resulting from posted, pending and anticipated underlying trans-
actions. In accordance with the internally concluded futures and options trading, and taking into 
consideration the net exposures, external hedging activities are transacted with banks with 
excellent credit ratings.
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We systematically hedge against net exposures in the following currencies: US dollars, Japanese yen, 
British pounds, Swiss francs, Korean Won and Polish zlotys. To this end, we use standardized 
foreign currency hedging instruments such as forward exchange transactions and currency options.
Other currencies are hedged against based on individual projects. A risk exists in the market 
price fluctuation of forward exchange transactions, but it is usually countered by contrary market 
values for the underlying transaction. In the eurozone, we concentrate our liquidity daily using  
a cash-pool system that ensures a Group-wide and transnational liquidity balance. We have a 
comparable system in place at our subsidiaries in China. A multilateral netting of accounts 
receivable and payable increases transparency and facilitates the processing of internal payments.

We continued to develop our internal control system intensively during the year under review, 
and document it comprehensively. Internal audits provide additional individual subsidiary trans-
parency. We have emphasized the importance of these audits, and will continue to expand our 
auditing activities. 

Strategic and operational opportunities and risks 

Innovations 

We react to trends in technology at a very early stage. Our innovation management maintains  
a technology roadmap that secures availability of future technologies while identifying disruptive 
ones, and initiates meaningful steps for their industrialization. We also specifically seek proximity 
to universities, non-university research institutes, or relevant startups. Institutional research in 
projects with multiple partners plays a key role for us, so that we are always up-to-date with the 
trends in our high-technology fields.

Intellectual property

We secure our investment in research and development through close collaboration between 
development and the patent department. Our goal is to develop a patent portfolio that gives 
TRUMPF market advantages of freedom of action, exclusivity, and patent exploitation. Here,  
patent law officers accompany intellectual property entry into new technologies and contribute 
toward their targeted generation, evaluation and application. We also register property rights  
for new developments. Our core markets are always the main focus here.
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Our active rights protection policy is enhanced by defensive publications of concepts and  
ideas that enrich the technological state of the art but can only be implemented by TRUMPF on  
a very small scale, not at all, or not by the company itself. Such contributions to the verifiable 
technological state of the art help to enhance freedom of action for TRUMPF and its customers in 
the long-term.

Acquisitions

TRUMPF is constantly evolving. We improve our position in markets and technology fields 
through targeted acquisitions. Our decisions in favor of acquisitions are always very carefully 
considered. An M&A Committee made up of members from our divisions and central depart-
ments reviews any acquisition projects. Due diligence provides us with the greatest possible  
certainty about the future development potential of an M&A project. We reduce the risk still 
further through relevant agreements in the purchase contracts.

Procurement

We successfully continued with our Purchasing Excellence program during the year under 
review, and included additional divisions and locations in the professionalization of procure-
ment. The focus here was on the global harmonization of processes, adherence to compliance 
mechanisms, and the introduction of a tendering platform. Furthermore, we continually  
review the purchasing volume for optimization potential and implement calls for tenders  
centrally, especially where procurement of non-production material is concerned.

We were able to improve the early involvement of procurement with the help of our project buyer 
structure for the purchase of production materials, and support development of a higher level  
of service. Our suppliers’ expertise plays a key role in our technological lead and our customer- 
oriented products. To ensure the cost-optimized functional implementation of new developments 
or revisions of existing products, we have introduced cost engineering. Technical measures are 
being developed in workshops between development and purchasing, and also, in part, with our 
suppliers. To accompany this, our shared technology and commodity-group management develops 
global strategies for all relevant commodity groups, facilitating cooperation across technologies, 
sites and functions. 
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We keep risks low through comprehensive supplier management. Careful selection and continuous 
evaluation of our strategic suppliers, combined with a stringent vendor approval process, provide 
the necessary transparency about possible risks at all times. By continuously monitoring delivery, 
quality and reliability, we derive suitable measures for quality assurance and supplier develop-
ment. We were able to guarantee our basic supply by third parties at all times. We still have single 
sourcing in the case of some key components, but alternative suppliers are being established on  
a continuous basis.

Due to the moderate growth, no capacity shortfalls or delivery bottlenecks were caused by  
processes on the procurement side. Effects resulting from problems in the commodity markets 
remained minimal.

Production

The processes in our production areas undergo continuous development. Here, our lean production 
philosophy SYNCHRO is a crucial prerequisite for Group-wide implementation of the Smart  
Factory in our own production units. Our goal is to have all of our production sites completely 
digitalized by 2020, and are relying fully here on the components of our own solutions –  
TruConnect and AXOOM.

We have identified the risks of business interruptions in production and taken protective measures 
against them accordingly. We have examined and assessed critical production processes. Produc-
tion downtimes can be avoided by increasing the flexibility of our production facilities or through 
the short-term relocation of production. Measures also include extensive emergency scenarios.

Property and fire damage, operating downtimes, as well as operational and product liability 
risks are sufficiently protected by an international insurance policy along with local coverage. 
We regularly assess and audit our production locations together with our longstanding insurance 
brokers.
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Information technology

We also keep a very close eye on IT risks, constantly monitoring our central Enterprise Resource 
Planning System (ERP) and continuously improving its security standards. We continued with  
the restructuring of the authorization process within the ERP system. The new authorizations 
comply with a standardized principle and are based on our business processes. We continue to 
steadily optimize the security level of the remaining IT structure.

Employees 

Our employee turnover rate is low: 4.1 percent in the Group and 2.3 percent in Germany.  
Demographic change and the lack of qualified staff in technological professions continue to pres-
ent our Human Resources department with challenges. Consequently, we place a high priority 
on recruiting and securing the next generation of highly skilled workers. This includes long-term 
measures such as projects and school partnerships, one example being our “Knowledge Factory” 
initiative. Our flexible worktime model makes us a very attractive employer, especially in Germany.

Compliance program

TRUMPF has introduced a Group-wide compliance program. The code of conduct describes  
the expectations of the company and requires that, throughout their business dealings, all 
TRUMPF Group employees follow the law and adhere to ethical standards. It also establishes  
the basic rules that must be followed at TRUMPF. All of our employees undergo regular  
compliance training, and a Group-wide training program was introduced once again during  
the year under review. 

Assessment of the company’s risk situation

There are no identifiable risks that could substantially endanger the continuity of the corporate 
Group. The risk management system practiced by the company enables risks to be detected in 
real time so that adequate countermeasures can be introduced. Activities focus on the manage-
ment of financial risks and market risks, as well as on the identification of entrepreneurial and 
technological opportunities.
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Subsequent Events
Effective July 1, 2016, our subsidiary in Portugal began independent operations. Until then, the 
office in Porto Salvo was a branch of TRUMPF in Spain. The employees have now taken over the 
sales and service of machine tools and lasers in Portugal.

Outlook

Economic Environment

World economy suffering from numerous political and economic crises

For 2016, the IMF is expecting only moderate global economic growth of 3.1 percent, and of 
3.4 percent for 2017. The causes here are weaker growth in the established industrial nations, 
and uncertainties in the normally high-growth emerging markets.

The decision by Britain to leave the EU had an adverse effect on the prospects of the established 
industrial nations in particular. For 2016 and 2017, the IMF experts are expecting an increase  
in economic output of just 1.8 percent. In the eurozone, the IMF predicts growth of 1.6 percent 
in 2016 but of only 1.4 percent in 2017. With the UK as the third largest export market for  
its economy, Germany was significantly impacted by the Brexit decision. Following growth of 
1.7 percent in 2016, the IMF is predicting an increase of only 1.3 percent for 2017. 

According to the IMF, the US economy is capable of 2.2 percent growth in 2016 and 2.5 percent 
in 2017. Brexit will not have that great an impact on the United States. Nevertheless, the strong 
dollar and a slowdown in equipment investment could impede dynamic development in economic 
output.
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For the emerging countries, in spite of the further slowdown in China, slightly faster growth is 
predicted – with 4.1 percent for 2016 and 4.6 percent for 2017. With growth rates of 6.6 percent 
and 6.2 percent, China will remain below the levels of previous years. There is a noticeable  
transition process toward increased sustainable growth that is based more on consumption and 
services. The outlook for Brazil continues to be negative. For 2016 the IMF forecasts a decline  
in economic output of 3.3 percent, followed by 0.5 percent growth in 2017. 

Moderate growth in 2016 for machine tool industry

Forecasts by the VDW assume moderate production growth in 2016 of 1.0 percent. This assess-
ment is based on investments by the key customer industries, global machine tool consumption, 
and the order intake of German machine tool manufacturers. In the fall of last year, Oxford 
Economics expected a global increase of 4.0 percent for investments. Machine tool consumption 
is predicted to increase by 4.2 percent. Europe leads the pack with growth of 4.6 percent, closely 
followed by Asia with an increase of 4.5 percent, and America with 2.5 percent.

Weaker outlook for the laser industry

The laser industry will be unable to uncouple itself in 2016 from the difficult global economic 
conditions. For 2016, Optech Consulting predicts a sideways movement in the otherwise 
fast-growing high-tech market for industrial lasers. This outlook is based on a weaker growth 
trend at the start of the year and on lower demand from China.

Outlook of the company

TRUMPF expects growth in sales and earnings

Despite the uncertain economic and political situation, we are cautiously optimistic for the fiscal 
year 2016/17 and are expecting sales to increase in the mid-single-digit range. We also intend to 
increase our order intake and reach a value that is slightly above sales.
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With regard to our earnings situation, we want to achieve a return on sales of over 10 percent 
once again.

Since 2012 we have experienced only minor fluctuations in the dynamics of the mechanical  
engineering and machine tool market, which, until then, was very volatile. We are countering 
this with a sales initiative aimed at gaining market shares worldwide. This, we hope, will increase 
revenues within the division by a percentage that is analogous to Group turnover. There is a  
particular emphasis on the introduction of new products and services. The focus here is on auto-
mation – for instance, through our brand new machine concept for 2D laser cutting machines 
– and on developments relating to Industry 4.0. With our offerings under the name of TruConnect, 
we are supporting our customers within our core business in the digitalization of their processes, 
bringing them new efficiency gains. Our subsidiary AXOOM is opening up entirely new customer 
groups and fields of application for us, since it is independent of any single manufacturer and, 
therefore, affects all areas of production. We are also pursuing broader market entry into the 
laser welding and tube processing technology fields over the next three years.

Within laser technology, we are also expecting single-digit growth in sales and orders. Regionally, 
we want to focus primarily on the growth opportunities in North America and Southeast Asia. 
In terms of technology, we continue to be the manufacturer that provides the broadest all laser 
type product portfolio, enabling our customers to select the most suitable laser for their applica-
tions. We are continuing to develop this portfolio across its full breadth. Our activities with 
diode lasers are of key importance in this area.

We continue to vigorously promote the expansion of our additive manufacturing activities.  
The larger part of the rapidly growing 3D printing market consists of industrial applications,  
for example, in aircraft and turbine construction, as well as in medical and dental technology. 
We will be participating in this development with the products we intended for roll out over the 
coming two fiscal years.

In the past our Electronics business field has experienced several years of declining sales. Its  
fundamental realignment has already resulted in positive effects during the year under review, 
and will continue to do so during fiscal 2016/17.
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Underlying this approach is a consistent focus on innovative electronics solutions in medium 
batch sizes, especially in the semiconductor industry. On the one hand, this applies to supplies 
and services in the other TRUMPF business fields. On the other, we are expecting a significant 
recovery in the investment climate for two areas in particular that are relevant to us. A new  
generation of displays with functional layers is about to be introduced to the market. In the  
photovoltaic sector, after several years of weak growth, there is an investment backlog that 
promises longer term growth. A major order that will affect sales in the coming fiscal year 
underpins our optimism. In addition, we have penetrated a further innovative market segment 
with our new battery inverter. Its industrialization is planned for 2017.

In addition to the activities in our divisions we are also continuing to develop TRUMPF itself  
consistently – with the focus on digitalization, agility of the company and the resulting higher 
customer value. In terms of technology and organization, we are, therefore, ideally positioned  
to make the fiscal year 2016/17 another successful one for the Group.

Ditzingen, September 15, 2016

TRUMPF GmbH + Co. KG 
Berthold Leibinger GmbH 
Dr. phil. Nicola Leibinger-Kammüller (President)  
Dr.-Ing. E.h. Peter Leibinger (Vice President)  
Dr. rer. pol. Lars Grünert  
Dr.-Ing. Mathias Kammüller  
Dr. rer. soc. Gerhard Rübling
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EQUITY AND LIABILITIES in € ’000s Notes 6/30/2016 6/30/2015

EQUITY 6

Fixed capital and subscribed capital 98,500 98,500

Revenue reserves 1,223,485 1,089,793

Equity difference from foreign currency translation 109,859 148,470

Minority interests 45,103 47,068

1,476,947 1,383,831

DIFFERENCE FROM CAPITAL CONSOLIDATION – 1,340

SPECIAL RESERVES 7 7,924 8,480

ACCRUALS

Accruals for pensions and similar obligations 215,490 199,856

Other accruals 8 301,421 294,228

516,911 494,084

LIABILITIES 9 782,519 761,709

DEFERRED INCOME 10 42,159 39,327

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 11 12,901 19,737

 2,839,361 2,708,508

ASSETS in € ’000s Notes 6/30/2016 6/30/2015

FIXED ASSETS

Intangible assets 1 112,328 143,948

Tangible assets 828,180 795,691

Financial assets 17,417 11,555

957,925 951,194

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories 2 612,017 590,558

Receivables and other assets 3 716,657 651,143

Securities 535 554

Cash and cash equivalents 4 526,014 489,525

1,855,223 1,731,780

PREPAID EXPENSES 5 26,213 25,534

  2,839,361 2,708,508

Consolidated Balance Sheet
as of June 30, 2016
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
for fiscal year 2015/16

in € ’000s Notes 2015/16 2014/15

Sales 16 2,808,465 2,716,993

Changes in inventories and own work capitalized 17 31,338 33,529

2,839,803 2,750,522

Other operating income 18 106,048 132,738

Cost of materials 19 –1,199,766 –1,190,503

Personnel expenses 20 –817,789 –793,052

Amortization and depreciation on intangible assets  
and tangible assets –117,984 –109,140

Other operating expenses 21 –490,837 –488,468

Financial and investment result 22 –16,379 –16,887

Results from ordinary business activities 303,096 285,210

Extraordinary income 23 – 71,930

Extraordinary result – 71,930

Taxes on income 24 –56,444 –76,998

Other taxes –11,596 –9,351

Group net income for the year 235,056 270,791

Results allocable to minority interests 6 4 –1,099

Group net income for the year  
excluding results allocable to minority interests 235,060 269,692

For information purposes:

Partners’ taxes 24 –38,995 –47,014

Group net income for the year after partners’  
taxes and minority interests 196,065 222,678
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Statement of  
Shareholders’ Equity
for fiscal year 2015/16

Parent company Minority interests

Fixed capital 
and subscribed 

capital

Equity
earned by
the Group

Accumulated other 
 comprehensive income

Equity Minority
capital

Accumulated 
other compre-

hensive income

Equity Group equity

in € ’000s Exchange rate
differences

Other recog-
nized income 
and expense

Exchange rate
differences

As of June 30, 2014 98,500 974,052 30,955 –76,635 1,026,872 38,918 –439 38,479 1,065,351

Payments of dividends – – – – – –62 – –62 –62

Allocations to partners’ accounts – –93,255 – – –93,255 – – – –93,255

Changes in consolidated group – – – 13,748 13,748 1,534 – 1,534 15,282

Group net income for the year – 269,692 – – 269,692 1,099 – 1,099 270,791

Other changes – 2,191 117,515 – 119,706 – 6,018 6,018 125,724

As of June 30, 2015 98,500 1,152,680 148,470 –62,887 1,336,763 41,489 5,579 47,068 1,383,831

Investments – – – – – 4,102 – 4,102 4,102

Payments of dividends – – – – – –5,394 – –5,394 –5,394

Allocations to partners’ accounts – –103,413 – – –103,413 – – – –103,413

Changes in consolidated group – –342 – – –342 1,514 – 1,514 1,172

Group net income for the year – 235,060 – – 235,060 –4 – –4 235,056

Other changes – 2,387 –38,611 – –36,224 – –2,183 –2,183 –38,407

As of June 30, 2016 98,500 1,286,372 109,859 –62,887 1,431,844 41,707 3,396 45,103 1,476,947
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Parent company Minority interests

Fixed capital 
and subscribed 

capital

Equity
earned by
the Group

Accumulated other 
 comprehensive income

Equity Minority
capital

Accumulated 
other compre-

hensive income

Equity Group equity

in € ’000s Exchange rate
differences

Other recog-
nized income 
and expense

Exchange rate
differences

As of June 30, 2014 98,500 974,052 30,955 –76,635 1,026,872 38,918 –439 38,479 1,065,351

Payments of dividends – – – – – –62 – –62 –62

Allocations to partners’ accounts – –93,255 – – –93,255 – – – –93,255

Changes in consolidated group – – – 13,748 13,748 1,534 – 1,534 15,282

Group net income for the year – 269,692 – – 269,692 1,099 – 1,099 270,791

Other changes – 2,191 117,515 – 119,706 – 6,018 6,018 125,724

As of June 30, 2015 98,500 1,152,680 148,470 –62,887 1,336,763 41,489 5,579 47,068 1,383,831

Investments – – – – – 4,102 – 4,102 4,102

Payments of dividends – – – – – –5,394 – –5,394 –5,394

Allocations to partners’ accounts – –103,413 – – –103,413 – – – –103,413

Changes in consolidated group – –342 – – –342 1,514 – 1,514 1,172

Group net income for the year – 235,060 – – 235,060 –4 – –4 235,056

Other changes – 2,387 –38,611 – –36,224 – –2,183 –2,183 –38,407

As of June 30, 2016 98,500 1,286,372 109,859 –62,887 1,431,844 41,707 3,396 45,103 1,476,947
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Development of the Consolidated Fixed Assets
for fiscal year 2015/16

in € ’000s Acquisition 
costs 

7/1/2015

Changes in 
consolidated 

group

Additions Disposals Transfers Accumu-
lated

depreciation

Book value 
6/30/2016

Book value 
6/30/2015

Depreciation
for the year

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Acquired concessions, 
industrial and similar 
rights and assets and 
licenses 149,689 882 4,660 –409 1,929 –93,045 63,706 76,215 15,809

Goodwill 90,314 4,267 1,162 –171 – –49,011 46,561 66,063 20,228

Payments on account 1,671 – 1,976 – –1,586 – 2,061 1,670 –

241,674 5,149 7,798 –580 343 –142,056 112,328 143,948 36,037

TANGIBLE ASSETS

Land and  
buildings 827,960 – 23,366 –1,549 4,829 –290,618 563,988 566,355 24,317

Technical equipment 
and machines 318,107 5 11,428 –15,050 7,423 –230,221 91,692 105,496 26,667

Other equipment, 
factory and office 
equipment 340,396 227 36,090 –15,064 4,676 –256.512 109,813 102,576 30,963

Payments on 
account and assets 
under construction 21,190 – 58,921 –177 –17,271 24 62,687 21,264 –

1,507,653 232 129,805 –31,840 –343 –777,327 828,180 795,691 81,947

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Shares in affiliated
enterprises 9,143 –5,320 6,956 –14 – – 10,765 9,079 –

Shares in associated
enterprises 55 – 2,484 – 1,926 – 4,465 55 –

Participations 4,230 – – – –1,926 –2,304 – 1,926 –

Long-term
investments 846 – 505 –14 – –570 767 220 –

Other loans 292 – 1,162 –34 – – 1,420 275 –

14,566 –5,320 11,107 –62 – –2,874 17,417 11,555 –

1,763,893 61 148,710 –32,482 – –922.257 957,925 951,194 117,984
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for fiscal year 2015/16

in € ’000s 2015/16 2014/15

CONSOLIDATED NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR 235,056 270,791

+ / – Elimination of financial and investment result 16,379 16,887

+ / – Elimination of income tax expenses 56,444 76,998

Consolidated net income before financial and investment result and income taxes 307,879 364,676

– / + Elimination of extraordinary income/expenses from investing activities – –71,930

– / + Income taxes paid/received –51,061 –77,660

+ / – Elimination of write-downs/write-ups of fixed assets 117,984 109,140

– / + Elimination of gain/loss from disposals of fixed assets –417 163

– / + Increase/decrease in inventories and trade receivables –7,242 –7,016

+ / – Increase/decrease in trade payables –4,806 6,047

+ / – Increase/decrease in accruals 3,490 61,475

+ / – Change in other assets and liabilities –1,182 –34,343

+ / – Elimination of other non-cash expenses/income 2,687 2,697

= Cash inflow from operating activities 367,332 353,249

– Cash paid for investments in property, plant and equipment –129,805 –96,478

+ Cash received from the disposal of property, plant and equipment 7,029 6,375

– Cash paid for investments in intangible assets –7,797 –32,970

+ Cash received from disposals of intangible assets 58 54

– Cash paid for investments in fixed financial assets –10,307 –10,077

+ Cash received from the disposal of fixed financial assets 62 3,543

+ / – Cash paid/received for the acquisition of consolidated entities –7 121

+ Cash received from the sale of consolidated entities – 187,079

+ Dividends received – 2

+ Interest received 5,123 4,838

= Cash outflow/inflow from investing activities –135,644 62,487

+ Cash received from equity contributions from minority interests 4,102 –

– Cash paid to shareholders –59,409 –83,548

– Dividends paid to other shareholders –5,394 –63

+ Cash received from the issue of loans and other financial liabilities 14,715 14,161

– Cash repayments of loans and other financial liabilities –75,455 –63,258

– Interest paid –3,243 –6,468

+ Cash received from subsidies/grants 107 243

= Cash outflow from financing activities –124,577 –138,933

CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 107,111 276,803

+ / – Change in cash and cash equivalents due to exchange rate changes –12,491 27,020

+ / – Change in cash and cash equivalents due to consolidation related reasons 1,536 3,056

+ Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the fiscal year 512,103 205,224

= Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the fiscal year 608,259 512,103

COMPOSITION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

+ Cash 526,014 489,525

+ Securities 535 554

+ Promissory note bonds 83,500 37,000

– Liabilities to banks payable on demand –1,790 –14,976

= Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the fiscal year 608,259 512,103
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Principles and Methods

The consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year 2015/16 have been prepared in accor-
dance with sec. 264a HGB (German Commercial Code) and in line with sec. 290 et sequentes 
HGB. The accounting and valuation principles of the HGB for large corporations have been 
applied while taking into account the regulations for partnerships as well as supplementary pro-
visions of partnership agreements of the parent companies. In accordance with sec. 298 (1) HGB 
in conjunction with sec. 244 HGB the consolidated financial statements have been prepared in 
euros (€). The consolidated income statement follows the total costs method.

To enhance the clarity of the consolidated financial statements, various items of the consolidated 
balance sheet and the consolidated income statement have been combined and are disclosed sep-
arately in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. The balance sheet was supplemented 
by the position “Other financial liabilities” in addition to those prescribed by law.

Accounting and Valuation

The financial statements of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements 
 follow uniform accounting and valuation principles. In case adjustments to local accounts are 
necessary to ensure uniform accounting within the group, a “Handelsbilanz II” (balance sheet 
for consolidation purposes) is prepared.

Intangible and tangible assets are stated at acquisition or manufacturing costs, net of regular 
amortization or depreciation. Tangible assets are depreciated using the straight-line method. 

For regular amortization and depreciation the following useful lives are assumed: 3 to 5 years 
for software, 5 years for goodwill, 9 to 12 years for acquired customer bases, 3 to 9 years for 
technological know-how, 10 years for trademark rights, 25 to 50 years for buildings, 6 to 8 years 
for technical equipment and machinery, and 3 to 20 years for other equipment, factory and office 
equipment.

Financial assets are stated at acquisition costs or net realizable values as of the balance sheet date. 
The accounting and valuation principles of shares in associated enterprises are outlined in the 
chapter consolidation principles.

Inventories of raw materials, consumables and supplies as well as merchandise are stated at the 
lower of costs or market values. Finished goods and work in progress are valued at manufacturing 

Notes to the  
Consolidated Financial Statements 
for fiscal year 2015/16
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costs, which include direct material and productions costs, appropriate material and production 
overhead costs as well as depreciation expenses attributable to the manufacturing process. 

In case acquisition or manufacturing costs exceed the market value at the balance sheet date due 
to lower replacement prices/sales market prices, excess inventories or unsaleability, the book 
value of inventories is adjusted accordingly.

Payments on account received are deducted from inventories.

Receivables and other assets are stated at the lower of nominal values or net realizable values as 
of the balance sheet date. If the collectability of receivables is at risk, appropriate allowances are 
made. Receivables deemed uncollectible are written down to full extent. The general credit risk 
inherent in trade receivables is covered by lump-sum bad debt allowances on net receivables that 
are not subject to specific allowances.

Securities are stated at the lower of acquisition costs or net realizable values at the balance sheet 
date.

Prepaid expenses comprise payments that were made prior to the balance sheet date but that 
constitute expenses for a certain period after that date. Debt discounts are capitalized and amor-
tized over the scheduled term of the loans.

The special reserves include investment subsidies and grants for fixed assets. They are released 
over the economic life of the subsidized assets. 

Accruals for pensions and similar obligations are calculated based on actuarial principles using 
the projected unit credit method based on Prof. Dr. Klaus Heubeck’s 2005 G mortality tables. In 
accordance with the regulation in sec. 253 (1) HGB, the expected increase in salaries and pen-
sions as well as the predicted employee turnover are taken into account in the actuarial calcula-
tion of the accruals. Accruals for pensions and similar obligations are discounted with the 
average market interest rate prevailing over the past ten (previous year: seven) fiscal years, based 
on the assumption of a residual term of 15 years. The interest rates are published by Deutsche 
Bundesbank (German Central Bank). The determination of the discount factor over the longer 
ten year horizon leads to a positive difference of k€ 24,984.
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In fiscal year 2015/16 the calculation was based on the following parameters:

– Interest rate: 4.17 percent p.a. (previous year: 4.20 percent p.a.)
– Increase of salaries and pensions: 3.0 percent p.a. (previous year: 3.0 percent p.a.)
– Pension trend: 2.0 percent p.a. (previous year: 1.0–2.0 percent p.a.)

Other accruals cover all known risks, uncertain liabilities and contingent losses on pending 
transactions as of the balance sheet date. They are recognized at the settlement value which is 
derived from prudent commercial judgment. Accruals with a remaining term of more than one 
year have been discounted in accordance with sec. 253 (2) sentence 1 HGB. Economic hedging 
relationships between derivative financial instruments and the underlying transactions are 
accounted for by creating valuation units. Therefore, no provisions for onerous contracts are 
recorded for financial instruments with a negative fair value.

Accruals for obligations relating to phased retirement programs are calculated according to actu-
arial principles based on an interest rate of 1.87 percent p.a. (previous year: 2.42 percent p.a.). 
These accruals were offset against assets which will be used exclusively for the settlement of 
these obligations and which cannot be accessed by all other remaining creditors. The net realiz-
able value of the plan assets (k€ 3,191, previous year: k€ 2,626) is equivalent to their amortized 
costs. The repayment amount of the accruals for obligations relating to phased retirement 
programs which were offset against the corresponding assets stands at k€ 4,076 (previous year: 
k€ 3,006). Due to immateriality the offsetting of expenses and income was waived. 

Accruals for obligations relating to the „TRUMPF Familien- und Weiterbildungskonto“ were off-
set against assets that will only be used for the fulfillment of these obligations and that cannot 
be accessed by other creditors. The net realizable value of the plan assets, which corresponds to 
their amortized costs is k€ 4,484 (previous year: k€ 3,229). The repayment amount of the accruals 
is also k€ 4,484 (previous year: k€ 3,229). Due to immateriality the offsetting of the corresponding 
expenses and income was waived. 

Liabilities are reported at the repayment amount.

Deferred income includes payments that were made prior to the balance sheet date but constitute 
income for a certain period after that date. 
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Deferred taxes result from temporary and quasi-permanent differences between the commercial 
amounts of assets, liabilities, accrued and deferred items and their corresponding tax values, or 
from tax loss carry forwards. To calculate the deferred tax amount, the respective undiscounted 
tax burden or relief is valued based on the company-specific tax rate that is expected to prevail 
when the differences will be settled. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are shown net. If a surplus 
remains on the assets side as of the balance sheet date, the option for recognition in accordance 
with sec. 274 (1) sentence 2 HGB is not exercised.

Ownership of Shares and Companies included in Consolidation

Professor Dr. techn. Dr.-Ing. h. c. Berthold Leibinger, his family and Berthold Leibinger Stiftung 
GmbH hold all shares, directly and indirectly, in TRUMPF GmbH + Co. KG and Berthold 
 Leibinger GmbH, Ditzingen (Germany). Together, these two companies exercise joint control 
over all domestic and foreign subsidiaries of the TRUMPF Group. The consolidation process 
treats these two companies as joint parent companies.

In addition to the parent companies, the basis of consolidation consists of 27 (previous year: 26)  
German subsidiaries and 55 (previous year: 53) subsidiaries outside of Germany. In fiscal year 
2015/16 a newly established company as well as two further companies have been included for 
the first time in the consolidated financial statements according to the principles of full consolida-
tion. The initial consolidation had no significant impact on the financial position and perfor-
mance of the group, so the comparability with the previous year is still given.

Two (previous year: two) companies are included in the consolidated financial statements as 
associated enterprises, in accordance with sec. 311 et sequentes HGB.

Twelve (previous year: ten) subsidiaries as well as two (previous year: one) associated enterprises 
are not included in the consolidated financial statements for reasons of immateriality. Their  
combined net income and revenues only amount to approximately 1 percent of the consolidated 
TRUMPF Group net income and revenue, respectively. Consequently, they are considered as  
irrelevant for the fair presentation of the financial position of the Group. 
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Consolidation Principles

Until June 30, 2010 capital consolidation was carried out in accordance with the book value 
method. This involves offsetting acquisition costs against the pro rata owner’s equity of the sub-
sidiaries at the time of first-time consolidation, foundation or acquisition. From fiscal year 
2010/11 onwards the revaluation method in accordance with sec. 301 (1) HGB has been applied. 
When using this method the equity of the subsidiaries is stated at an amount that approximates 
the net realizable value of those assets and liabilities that have to be included in the consolidated 
financial statement.

Until the fiscal year 2009/10 a residual debit difference was treated as goodwill and offset 
against the revenue reserves and minority interests without affecting income. From fiscal year 
2010/11 onwards a residual debit difference is shown as goodwill on the assets side and is 
depreciated based on the expected useful life. If a credit difference results from capital consoli-
dation, it is disclosed as a credit difference arising from capital consolidation below the equity 
items. 

Investments in associated enterprises have been consolidated at equity in accordance with sec. 
312 (1) no. 1 HGB using the book value method.

The consolidation measures of sec. 300 to 305 HGB may result in differences between the 
accounting and the tax base of assets, liabilities as well as of accrued or deferred items. In these 
cases, the prospective tax relief or burden is recognized in the balance sheet as deferred tax 
asset/liability provided that these differences are expected to reverse in the future. The calcula-
tion of deferred taxes is based on the individual tax rate expected for the date of settlement of 
the differences. The tax rates range from 12 percent to 39 percent. Deferred tax liabilities are 
disclosed net of deferred tax assets. Deferred taxes arising from consolidation activities are 
combined to one balance sheet item together with deferred taxes resulting from the application 
of sec. 274 HGB.

Any intercompany profits arising from intercompany sales or services are eliminated with effect 
on income. Accounts receivable and accounts payable between companies included in the consoli-
dation are offset against each other. Any resulting foreign exchange related difference is not 
included in the profit and loss account and recognized in the item „equity difference from foreign 
currency translation“ instead. Revenues from intercompany sales and intercompany income are 
offset against the corresponding expenses or reclassified as changes in inventory or other own 
work capitalized. 
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Foreign Currency Translation

In the individual financial statements, foreign currency receivables and liabilities are translated 
generally at the average spot exchange rate. In case of residual terms of more than one year the 
realization principle (sec. 298 (1) HGB in conjunction with sec. 252 (1) No. 4 clause 2 HGB) and 
the historical cost principle (sec. 298 (1) HGB in conjunction with sec. 253 (1) sentence 1 HGB) 
are taken into account. 

Bank balances denoted in foreign currency are translated at the average spot exchange rate pre-
vailing at the balance sheet date. Acquisition costs for shares in foreign subsidiaries or partici-
pations – with the exception of other participations – are valued at historical rates. Figures 
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements are translated at the average spot exchange rate 
on the balance sheet date.

In the consolidated financial statements, the balance sheet items of subsidiaries that do not use 
Euro as reporting currency are translated in accordance with sec. 308a HGB with the modified 
current-rate method. Hence, items on the asset and the liabilitiy side of balance sheets that are 
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the average spot exchange rate prevailing at 
the balance sheet date. This practice does not apply to the equity position for which historical 
rates are used. The items in the profit and loss accounts of subsidiaries that do not use Euro as 
reporting currency are translated at the average exchange rate for the fiscal year. Any resulting 
differences are shown within group equity below the reserves as „equity difference from foreign 
currency translation“ in accordance with sec. 308a HGB.
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Explanations to the Balance Sheet

The numbers stated in the following paragraphs refer to the corresponding items in the consoli-
dated balance sheet or consolidated profit and loss account. 

1. Fixed assets

The development of the consolidated fixed assets is presented separately in the statement of fixed 
assets changes. Differences resulting from currency translation have been taken into account in 
the acquisition or manufacturing costs as well as in the cumulated depreciation and amortization.

2. Inventories

in € ’000s 6/30/2016 6/30/2015

Raw materials, consumables and supplies 171,153 184,393

Work in progress 160,108 165,913

Finished goods and merchandise 384,115 359,823

Payments on account 8,929 7,995

724,305 718,124

Payments on account received –112,288 –127,566

612,017 590,558

3. Receivables and other assets

in € ’000s 6/30/2016 6/30/2015

Trade receivables 561,003 541,298

of which with a residual term of more than one year 3,845 7,835

Receivables from affiliated companies that are not fully consolidated 1,813 650

of which with a residual term of more than one year – –

Other assets 153,841 109,195

of which with a residual term of more than one year 2,870 3,658

716,657 651,143
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4. Cash and cash equivalents

This position comprises checks, cash on hand, bank balances as well as short-term investments. 

Other prepaid expenses include vacation allowances, insurance premiums, maintenance agree-
ments, rent, dues and other prepaid costs caused by the divergent fiscal year. 

6. Equity

The fixed capital and subscribed capital position corresponds to the compulsory contributions of 
the limited partners of TRUMPF GmbH + Co. KG and the subscribed capital of the general partner. 
The compulsory contributions of the limited partners and the risk capital are identical. 

The result allocation for the fiscal year 2015/16 was made in accordance with the regulations of 
the partnership agreements and has been taken into account in the preparation of the consoli-
dated financial statements.

Other revenue reserves contain profits and losses generated by the general partner, the domestic 
and foreign subsidiaries as well as allocated goodwill of k€ –62,887 (previous year: k€ –62,887). 

In accordance with sec. 308a HGB exchange rate differences are no longer disclosed together 
with revenues reserves. From fiscal year 2010/11 onwards, they are recognized separately within 
equity in the item „equity difference from foreign currency translation“.

Minority interests mainly relate to investments in Jiangsu Jinfangyuan CNC Machine Company 
Limited, TRUMPF-Homberger S.r.l., TRUMPF Sachsen GmbH and TRUMPF Hüttinger GmbH + 
Co. KG. The result allocable to minority interests comprises profit shares of k€ 3,081 (previous 
year: k€ 2,526) and loss shares of k€ 3,085 (previous year: k€ 1,427). The development of the 
Group’s equity is shown separately in the statement of changes in group equity.

5. Prepaid expenses

in € ’000s 6/30/2016 6/30/2015

Debt discount pursuant to sec. 250 (3) HGB 129 164

Other 26,084 25,370

26,213 25,534 
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Other accruals mainly relate to obligations in the personnel and welfare area, warranty obliga-
tions, outstanding purchase invoices and other contingent liabilities.

7. Special reserves 

in € ’000s 6/30/2016 6/30/2015

Investment subsidies and grants 7,924 8,480

7,924 8,480

8. Other accruals

in € ’000s 6/30/2016 6/30/2015

Tax accruals 15,216 20,329

Other accruals 286,205 273,899

301,421 294,228
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Liabilities to banks amounting to k€ 43,650 (previous year: k€ 49,596) have been trusted by 
mortgage. 

Other financial liabilities comprise a private placement on the US stock market of k€ 37.657 
(previous year: K€ 62,762) and the accrued interest.

9. Liabilities

Term Term

in € ’000s 6/30/2016 
Total

up to 
1 year

1 to 
5 years

over 
5 years

6/30/2015
Total

up to 
1 year

Liabilities to banks 88,321 12,169 54,504 21,648 109,225 18,753

Other financial liabilities 38,337 680 37,657 – 63,869 26,212

Trade payables 137,938 135,220 2,718 – 148,383 145,665

Liabilities on bills 
 accepted and drawn – – – – 21 21

Liabilities to affiliated 
companies that are not 
fully consolidated 499 499 – – 25 25

Liabilities to partners 391,277 94,362 296,915 – 332,131 73,861

Other liabilities 126,147 111,036 14,466 645 108,055 92,260

of which taxes 34,087 34,087 – – 30,673 30,673

of which relating 
to social security 5,462 5,462 – – 5,633 5,633

782,519 353,966 406,260 22,293 761,709 356,797
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Trade payables are subject to the customary retention of title. 

Liabilities to partners relate to liabilities of TRUMPF GmbH + Co. KG and TRUMPF Hüttinger 
GmbH + Co. KG to their limited partners.

Other liabilities include other financial liabilities amounting to k€ 59.370 (previous year: 
k€ 46,909) as well as commission liabilities and positive customer balances.

10. Deferred income

This item mainly includes the deferral of revenues or payments already received for maintenance 
services, training or leasing contracts. 

11. Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities amount to k€ 12,901 (previous year: k€ 19,737) as of the balance sheet 
date. The deferred tax liabilities recognized on the balance sheet are based on divergent values 
in the commercial and the tax financial statement. They are mainly attributable to intangible 
assets, tangible assets and accruals as well as deferred taxes from consolidation activities.

In light of the sound financial position of the companies, for which guarantees were provided, 
the risk that the contingent liabilities will become effective is considered to be low.

12. Contingent liabilities

in € ’000s 6/30/2016 6/30/2015

Liabilities from warranty agreements 37,962 40,023

Liabilities from guarantees 2,209 505

40,171 40,528
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Foreign exchange related transactions constitute foreign exchange forwards and swaps in the 
currency pairs EUR/USD, EUR/JPY, EUR/CNY, EUR/GBP, EUR/KRW, EUR/CHF and EUR/PLN. 
Other transactions include combined interest and foreign exchange hedging transactions in the 
currency pair EUR/USD.

Adequate accruals have been made for hedging transactions with a negative net realizable value 
on the balance sheet date that are not included in a valuation unit. The valuation is conducted in 
accordance with generally accepted valuation methods, e.g. present value or option pricing models.

The following valuation units have been generated:

13. Derivative financial instruments and valuation units

in € ’000s Nominal 
amount

Net realizable 
value

Book value Balance sheet item

Foreign exchange related transactions 542,472 –13,726 – –

Other transactions 37,657 –2,984 – –

Underlying transaction/Hedging instrument Risk/Type of valuation unit Included 
amounts

Hedged amount

Third party sales/Foreign exchange forwards Foreign exchange risk/Macro Hedge k€ 24,593 kCNY 183,858

Third party sales/Foreign exchange forwards 
and foreign exchange swaps

Foreign exchange risk/Macro Hedge 
k€ 249,797 kJPY 29,340,000

Third party sales/Foreign exchange forwards 
and foreign exchange swaps

Foreign exchange risk/Macro Hedge 
k€ 114,206 kUSD 131,081

Third party sales/Foreign exchange forwards Foreign exchange risk/Macro Hedge k€ 15,094 kGBP 12,420

Trade payables/Foreign exchange forwards Foreign exchange risk/Macro Hedge k€ 8,259 kPLN 36,000

Third party sales/Foreign exchange forwards Foreign exchange risk/Macro Hedge k€ 103,000 kKRW 136,056,020

Trade payables/Foreign exchange forwards Foreign exchange risk/Macro Hedge k€ 27,524 kCHF 30,000

Financial liabilities/Combined interest and 
foreign exchange hedges

Interest and foreign exchange risk/ 
Micro Hedge k€ 37,657 kUSD 45,000
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In respect of the existing hedges on the balance sheet date the following applies in accordance 
with sec. 254 HGB:

Economic hedging relationships between derivative financial instruments and underlying trans-
actions are reflected in the balance sheet by recognizing valuation units. Due to the consistency 
of all significant value-determining components, the opposite changes in value from the under-
lying and the hedged item completely offset one another within the hedging period. The effective-
ness of the hedges is monitored on a regular basis within the existing risk management. When 
necessary, the hedging strategy is modified immediately. Therefore, prospective and retrospective 
effectiveness can be assumed for all hedging relationships.

To hedge foreign exchange risks arising from highly probably forecast transactions, TRUMPF 
group enters forward contracts that match the expected net cash flow in terms of duration, nom-
inal value and currency (macro hedges). The highly probable future cash flows from sales and 
sourcing transactions are derived from the corporate planning process. The verification of former 
planning results has shown that the forecasted transactions are indeed highly probable. 

14. Off-balance-sheet transactions 

In this fiscal year there are no material off-balance-sheet transactions.

In addition to the financial commitments listed above, obligations from master agreements and 
regular purchase commitments on a scale customary for the company exist. 

15. Other financial commitments

in € ’000s 6/30/2016 6/30/2015

Rent, lease and leasing agreements as well as other commitments 44,300 51,724

Purchase obligations relating to capital expenditures 12,364 10,201

56,664 61,925

The amounts are due as follows: within 1 year 26,375 22,871

2 to 4 years 21,575 24,681

5 years and thereafter 8,714 14,373

56,664 61,925
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Explanations to the Profit and Loss Account

16. Sales

21 percent (previous year: 21 percent) of total sales were generated in Germany and 79 percent 
(previous year: 79 percent) abroad. For sales per business division please refer to the group man-
agement report. 

18. Other operating income

Other operating income mainly relates to income from exchange rate gains, the release of accruals 
and the reduction of allowances. 

Income from foreign currency translation amounts to k€ 66,245 (previous year: k€ 83,605). Other 
operating income totaling k€ 10,565 is allocable to other fiscal years (previous year: k€ 15,138).

in € ’000s 2015/16 2014/15

Sales in Germany 597,380 567,997

Sales outside Germany 2,211,085 2,148,996

2,808,465 2,716,993

17. Changes in inventories and own work capitalized

in € ’000s 2015/16 2014/15

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 28,185 27,488

Own work capitalized 3,153 6,041

31,338 33,529

19. Cost of materials

in € ’000s 2015/16 2014/15

Cost of raw materials, consumables and supplies and of purchased goods 1,143,607 1,131,043

Cost of purchased services 56,159 59,460

1,199,766 1,190,503
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Personnel expenses also contain the remuneration and pension expenses of our shareholders. 
Previous year pension costs included the effect of interest rate changes which result from the 
discounting of pension provisions. From fiscal year 2015/16 onwards, this effect is disclosed in 
the financial and investment result.

21. Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses mainly contain administrative and selling expenses including sales rep-
resentative commissions, third party services, maintenance costs, training and travel expenses, 
freight out, exchange rate losses, advertising expenses, rent and lease expenses as well as addi-
tions to provisions. Expenses from foreign currency translation amount to k€ 71,331 (previous 
year: k€ 78,099). 

The effect of interest rate changes which results from the discounting of pension provisions is 
disclosed in the financial and investment result for the first time in fiscal year 2015/16 (k€ 1,072). 

20. Personnel expenses

in € ’000s 2015/16 2014/15

Wages and salaries 682,054 636,843

Social security and other welfare costs 117,953 111,419

Pension costs 17,782 44,790

817,789 793,052

22. Financial and investment result

in € ’000s 2015/16 2014/15

Income from securities and loans 38 98

Income from equity investments – 2

Other interests and similar income 8,419 9,771

of which from affiliated companies 2 6

Depreciation of financial assets and current securities –22 –15

Interests and similar expenses –24,814 –26,743

of which from discounting of accruals –9,740 –7,361

–16,379 –16,887
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Hence, the financial and investment result contains the effect of discounting the pensions provi-
sions as well as the effect of interest rate changes. In prior years, the latter effect was disclosed 
as personnel expense.

The determination of the discount factor for pension provisions over the longer ten (previous 
year: seven) year horizon leads to a positive difference of k€ 24,984.

23. Extraordinary result 

Extraordinary profits of fiscal year 2014/15 (k€ 71,930) were fully attributable to the sale of the 
Medical Technology division. 

24. Taxes on income

Taxes on income include the effective and deferred trade tax and corporate income tax payable by 
TRUMPF GmbH + Co. KG, the general partner and the domestic and foreign subsidiaries. Effective 
income taxes stood at k€ 61,725 (previous year: k€ 80,963) for the reporting year.

The deferred tax income of k€ 5,280 recognized in the current fiscal year (previous year: 
k€ 3,964) can be split into two components: expenses resulting from differences between the 
commercial and the tax balance sheet (k€ –128, previous year: income k€ 1,054) as well as 
income from consolidation measures (k€ 5,408, previous year: k€ 2,910).

Shareholders‘ taxes were presented, for information purposes only, after the figure for the con-
solidated net income for the year according to sec. 264c (3) HGB. They are not included in the 
calculation of deferred taxes.

Notes to the Cash Flow Statement

25. Composition of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash (k€ 526,014), securities (k€ 535), short-term investments 
(k€ 83,500) as well liabilities to banks that are repayable on demand (k€ 1,790). The above 
mentioned short term investments can be converted into cash within a maximum of three months. 
The liabilities to banks that are repayable on demand refer to bank overdrafts. 

Unlike in financial year 2014/15, the cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with 
DRS 21. Prior year values have been adjusted accordingly.
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Other Disclosures

26. Audit fees

The total fee charged by the independent auditor for the fiscal year amounts to k€ 1,000 (previous 
year: k€ 1,052) and can be broken down as follows:

27. Employees

Annual average headcount:

28. Management

The persons stated below are responsible for the management of the company. Their remuneration 
for managing the parent company and its subsidiaries amounts to k€ 9,499 (previous year: k€ 7,789).

Pension commitments of k€ 17,237 (previous year: k€ 17,564) were granted to former members 
of the management. In fiscal year 2015/16, former general managers or their surviving dependents 
have received benefits amounting to k€ 1,291 (previous year: k€ 1,280).

29. Exemption in accordance with HGB

The following corporations have made use of the exemption from sec. 264 (3) HGB: TRUMPF 
Werkzeugmaschinen Beteiligungs-GmbH, TRUMPF Werkzeugmaschinen Deutschland Vertrieb + 

in € ’000s 2015/16 2014/15

Audit of financial statements 526 673

Tax consulting services 368 363

Other services 106 16

2015/16 2014/15

Germany Employees 5,306 4,916

  Trainees 332 350

Abroad Employees 5,427 5,182

  Trainees 147 136

11,212 10,584
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Service Beteiligungs-GmbH, TRUMPF International Beteiligungs-GmbH, TRUMPF Laser- und 
 Systemtechnik GmbH, TRUMPF Hüttinger Verwaltung GmbH, TRUMPF Laser GmbH, Celtia 
 Verwaltungs-GmbH, TRUMPF Lasertechnik GmbH, TRUMPF Finance GmbH, TRUMPF Med 
Beteiligungen GmbH, Berthold Leibinger Immobilien GmbH, TRUMPF Kapitalbeteiligungen 
GmbH, TRUMPF Sachsen GmbH, TRUMPF Scientific Lasers Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH, 
INGENERIC GmbH, TRUMPF Lasersystems for Semiconductor Manufacturing GmbH.

The following commercial partnerships within the meaning of sec. 264a (1) HGB made use of the 
exemption from the preparation of annual financial statements provided for in sec. 264b HGB in 
accordance with the commercial law provisions applicable to corporations: TRUMPF GmbH + Co. KG, 
TRUMPF Werkzeugmaschinen GmbH + Co. KG, TRUMPF Hüttinger GmbH + Co. KG, TRUMPF 
Immobilien GmbH + Co. KG, TRUMPF Werkzeugmaschinen Deutschland Vertrieb +  Service 
GmbH + Co. KG, TRUMPF Scientific Lasers GmbH + Co. KG.

30. Supervisory Board/Administrative Board

Sec. 1 (1) no. 2 of the MitbestG (German Codetermination Law) provides that a company which 
exceeds a certain size classification must appoint a supervisory board. In accordance with sec. 
7 (1) no. 1 MitbestG, Berthold Leibinger GmbH has met this requirement effective since fiscal 
year 1998/99. The Supervisory Board has twelve members.

The Supervisory Board total remuneration amounts to k€ 153 (previous year: k€ 104). 

31. Related party transactions

All transactions with affiliated companies and persons were conducted at arm’s length.

Ditzingen, September 15, 2016

TRUMPF GmbH + Co. KG 
Berthold Leibinger GmbH 
Dr. phil. Nicola Leibinger-Kammüller (President)
Dr.-Ing. E.h. Peter Leibinger (Vice President)
Dr. rer. pol. Lars Grünert
Dr.-Ing. Mathias Kammüller 
Dr. rer. soc. Gerhard Rübling
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List of Shareholdings
as of June 30, 2016

Company Interest quota
TRUMPF GmbH + Co. KG

direct indirect

Fully consolidated subsidiaries

TRUMPF Werkzeugmaschinen Beteiligungs-GmbH, Ditzingen 100

TRUMPF Werkzeugmaschinen GmbH + Co. KG, Ditzingen 100

TRUMPF Werkzeugmaschinen Deutschland Vertrieb + Service GmbH + Co. KG, Ditzingen 100

TRUMPF International Beteiligungs-GmbH, Ditzingen 100

TRUMPF Werkzeugmaschinen Deutschland Vertrieb + Service Beteiligungs-GmbH, Ditzingen 100

TRUMPF Laser- und Systemtechnik GmbH, Ditzingen 100

TRUMPF Hüttinger Verwaltung GmbH, Freiburg i. Br. 75

TRUMPF Hüttinger GmbH + Co. KG, Freiburg i. Br. 75

TRUMPF Lasersystems for Semiconductor Manufacturing GmbH, Ditzingen 100

TRUMPF Sachsen GmbH, Neukirch 94.4

TRUMPF Laser GmbH, Schramberg 100

TRUMPF Grundstücksverwaltungsgesellschaft mbH + Co. Vermietungs KG, Mainz 2 100

Celtia Verwaltungs-GmbH, Reutlingen 100

TRUMPF Financial Services GmbH, Ditzingen 100

TRUMPF Lasertechnik GmbH, Ditzingen 100

TRUMPF Finance GmbH, Ditzingen 100

TRUMPF Med Beteiligungen GmbH, Ditzingen 1 100

TRUMPF VSZ Grundstücksverwaltungsgesellschaft mbH + Co. KG, Mainz 2 94

Berthold Leibinger Immobilien GmbH, Ditzingen 100

TRUMPF Immobilien GmbH + Co. KG, Ditzingen 100

Hüttinger Grundstücks-Vermietungsgesellschaft mbH + Co. Objekt 
Freiburg KG, Pullach i. Isartal 2 70.5

TRUMPF Kapitalbeteiligungen GmbH, Ditzingen 100

TRUMPF Scientific Lasers Verwaltungs-GmbH, Unterföhring 80

TRUMPF Scientific Lasers GmbH + Co. KG, Unterföhring 80

INGENERIC GmbH, Aachen 80

TRUMPF Werkzeugmaschinen Teningen GmbH, Teningen 100

AXOOM GmbH, Karlsruhe 100

TRUMPF Maschinen AG, Baar, Switzerland 100

TRUMPF Grüsch AG, Grüsch, Switzerland 100

TRUMPF Maschinen Grüsch AG, Grüsch, Switzerland 100

TRUMPF Laser Marking Systems AG, Grüsch, Switzerland 100
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Company Interest quota
TRUMPF GmbH + Co. KG

direct indirect

TRUMPF Finance (Schweiz) AG, Baar, Switzerland 100

TRUMPF Inc., Farmington, Connecticut, USA 100

TRUMPF Huettinger Inc., Santa Clara, California, USA 75

Farmington Aviation Inc., Farmington, CT, USA 100

TRUMPF Photonics, Inc., Cranbury, New Jersey, USA 100

SPI Lasers LLC, Santa Clara, California, USA 100

Metamation Inc., Reno, Nevada, USA 51

TRUMPF Limited, Luton, Great Britain 100

SPI Lasers plc, Southampton, Great Britain 100

SPI Lasers UK Limited, Southampton, Great Britain 100

TRUMPF Corporation, Yokohama, Japan 100

TRUMPF Huettinger K.K., Yokohama, Japan 75

FA Service Corporation, Yokohama, Japan 100

TRUMPF S.A.S., Paris, France 100

TRUMPF Machines S.A.R.L., Haguenau, France 100

TRUMPF Máquinas Ind. E. Com. Ltda., Sao Paulo, Brazil 100

TRUMPF maskin ab, Alingsas, Sweden 100

TRUMPF Maquinaria S.A., Madrid, Spain 100

TRUMPF Maschinen Austria GmbH, Pasching, Austria 100

TRUMPF Maschinen Austria GmbH & Co. KG, Pasching, Austria 100

TRUMPF Homberger S.r.l., Buccinasco (Mailand), Italy 75

TRUMPF Macchine Italia S.r.l., Lonigo (VI), Italy 100

TRUMPF SISMA S.r.l., Piovene Rocchelle (VI), Italy 55

TRUMPF Pte Ltd., Singapur, Singapore 100

TRUMPF Korea Co., Ltd., Seoul, South Korea 100

TRUMPF Malaysia Sdn Bhd, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia 100

SPI Lasers Korea Ltd., Seoul, South Korea 100

TRUMPF (India) Private Limited, Pune, India 100

India Metamation Software Pvt. Ltd, Chennai, India 51

TRUMPF Praha spol. s.r.o., Prag, Czech Republic 100

TRUMPF Strojírenská výroba CZ s.r.o., Liberec, Czech Republic 100

TRUMPF Liberec, spol. s.r.o., Liberec, Czech Republic 100
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Company Interest quota
TRUMPF GmbH + Co. KG

direct indirect

TRUMPF Polska Sp. z o.o. Sp. k., Warschau, Poland 100

TRUMPF Polska Sp. z o.o., Warschau, Poland 100

TRUMPF Hüttinger Sp. z o.o., Zielonka, Poland 65.625

TRUMPF Hungary Kft, Budapest, Hungary 100

TRUMPF Sheet Metal Products (Taicang) Co., Ltd., Taicang, China 100

TRUMPF China (Hong Kong) Limited., Hong Kong, China 74.9

TRUMPF (China) Co., Ltd., Taicang, China 100

TRUMPF Metal Products (Dongguan) Co., Ltd., Dongguan, China 100

TRUMPF HÜTTINGER Electronics (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.., Shanghai, China 75

SPI Lasers (Shanghai) Co. Ltd., Shanghai, China 100

Jiangsu Jinfangyuan CNC Machine Co., Ltd., Jiangsu Province, China 72.236

TRUMPF Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V., Apodaca, Mexico 100

TRUMPF Mexico Services S. de R.L. de C.V., Apodaca, Mexico 100

TRUMPF Slovakia, s.r.o., Kosice, Slovakia 100

TRUMPF Canada Inc., Mississauga, Ontario, Canada 100

TRUMPF Nederland B.V., Hengelo, Netherlands 100

TRUMPF OOO, Moskau, Russia 100

TRUMPF Taiwan Industries Co., Ltd., Gueishan Shiang, Taoyuan County, Taiwan 100

PT. TRUMPF Indonesia, Jakarta, Indonesia 100

Inclusion according to the equity method

JT Optical Engine Verwaltungs-GmbH, Jena, Germany 1 50

Toref Technica Co., Ltd., Aichi, Japan 25

Companies not included in the consolidated financial statement

XETICS GmbH, Stuttgart 85

AXOOM Solutions GmbH, Karlsruhe 85

Findos SC Investor Fund II GmbH & Co. KG, München 24.995

TRUMPF Venture GmbH, Ditzingen 100

Latech KK, Sagamihara, Japan 100

JKL Newco Limited, Rugby, Great Britain 100

c-labs Corporation, Kent County, Delaware, USA 30.9
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Company Interest quota
TRUMPF GmbH + Co. KG

direct indirect

TPT Máquinas-Ferramentas e Laser, Unipessoal, Lda, Porto Salvo, Portugal 100

TRUMPF Engineering Services Italy S.r.l., Orbassano/ Turin, Italy 75

EHT Polska Sp. Z o.o., Gdynia, Poland 100

TRUMPF Bulgaria Ltd., Sofia, Bulgaria 100

TRUMPF Laser + Machinery S.R.L., Bukarest, Romania 100

TRUMPF Ltd., Bangkok, Thailand 100

TRUMPF Makina Sanayii A.Ş., Istanbul, Turkey 80

1 In liquidation.
2 Companies are consolidated as, from an economic standpoint, the opportunities and risks accrue to the parent company.
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Ernst & Young GmbH Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft, Stuttgart, issued the  
following audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements and the group  
management report as published in the “elektronischer Bundesanzeiger”  
(electronic Federal Gazette): 

“We have audited the consolidated financial statements prepared by TRUMPF GmbH 
+ Co. KG, Ditzingen, and Berthold Leibinger GmbH, Ditzingen, comprising the  
balance sheet, the income statement, the cash flow statement, the statement of changes 
in equity and the notes to the consolidated financial statements, together with the 
group management report for the fiscal year from July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016. The 
preparation of the consolidated financial statements and the group management 
report in accordance with German commercial law and supplementary provisions of 
the partnership agreements of the parent companies is the responsibility of the 
Group’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements and the group management report based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with 
Sec. 317 HGB [“Handelsgesetzbuch”: German Commercial Code] and German  
generally accepted standards for the audit of financial statements promulgated by 
the Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer [Institute of Public Auditors in Germany] (IDW). 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit such that misstatements 
materially affecting the presentation of the net assets, financial position and results 
of operations in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with [German] 
principles of proper accounting and in the group management report are detected 
with reasonable assurance. Knowledge of the business activities and the economic 
and legal environment of the Group and expectations as to possible misstatements 
are taken into account in the determination of audit procedures. The effectiveness of 
the accounting-related internal control system and the evidence supporting the dis-
closures in the consolidated financial statements and the group management report 
are examined primarily on a test basis within the framework of the audit. The audit 
includes assessing the annual financial statements of those entities included in con-
solidation, the determination of entities to be included in consolidation, the account-
ing and consolidation principles used and significant estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements 
and the group management report. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable 
basis for our opinion.

> Audit Opinion
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Our audit has not led to any reservations.

In our opinion, based on the findings of our audit, the consolidated financial state-
ments comply with the legal requirements and supplementary provisions of the  
articles of incorporation and bylaws and give a true and fair view of the net assets, 
financial position and results of operations of the Group in accordance with [German] 
principles of proper accounting. The group management report is consistent  
with the consolidated financial statements and as a whole provides a suitable view  
of the Group’s position and suitably presents the opportunities and risks of future 
development.”

Stuttgart, September 16, 2016

ERNST & YOUNG GMBH
WIRTSCHAFTSPRÜFUNGSGESELLSCHAFT

MARBLER  HEUBACH
GERMAN PUBLIC AUDITOR  GERMAN PUBLIC AUDITOR
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TruBend Series 8000 
Bending of large-format and  
thick components 

Both large open heights and bending 
lengths, along with press power of up to 
1,000 tons make the machines in the new 
TruBend Series 8000, built by TRUMPF, 
true powerhouses. Here, these flexible, 
large-format machines cover a broad  
spectrum of applications, as for example 
in working vehicle production industry 
and in agricultural vehicles and shipbuild-
ing. Featuring lengths of up to eight 
meters, these machines are predestined 
for machining larger parts. 

1 1 /201 5  >2  

TruPrint 1000
Printing metal parts quick and adaptable 

3D print via laser and metallic powder is 
made possible by the new TruPrint 1000. 
It can generate parts that are a maximum of 

100 millimeters in diameter and 100 mil-
limeters tall, layer by layer, from a bed of 
powder. This technology is suitable espe-
cially for parts that are complex in their 
geometry – such as those with internal chan-
nels and hollow spaces. All the components 
are integrated into the compact housing of 
the TruPrint 1000: the laser, optics, process 
enclosure, filter unit and control cabinet. 
The fascinating part actually takes place 
in the process enclosure, where the supply 
cylinder, construction chamber and over-
flow receiver are all aligned next to each 
other. The supply cylinder provides capac-
ity for up to 1.4 liters of stainless steel, 
tool steel, aluminum or another weldable 
material in powdered form.

0 4 /2016  >3  

TruLaser Tube 5000 fiber
Productive all-rounder for  
laser tube cutting

The TruLaser Tube 5000 fiber is the 
world’s first tube cutting machine based 

1 2



04/2016  
— 05/2016

3

on solid-state laser technology to eliminate 
the need for a fully enclosed housing. This 
massively improves access to the machine, 
making it quick and easy for users to  
load individual tubes and profiles. The 
new RapidCut function exploits the full 
potential of the solid-state laser, boosting 
productivity by up to 15 percent. Lengthy 
set-up times are a thing of the past. Its 
new clamping system rotates and centers 
the tubes with the utmost precision, 
allowing the machine to work on tubes 
across the entire clamping area without 
any retooling.

0 4 /2016  >4  

AXOOM Store
Shaping tomorow’s production

AXOOM, the business platform for the 
manufacturing industry from the TRUMPF 
Group, is commencing commercial oper-
ation with its first apps. The app store 
offers apps for optimizing production 
processes. In the end, AXOOM is aimed at 

providing safe and consistent intercon-
nection of all business processes in man-
ufacturing companies. Machines made 
by different manufacturers can all be 
connected to the platform, so that com-
plete production halls can be modeled 
and intelligently connected.

0 5/2016  >5  

TruMicro 2000
New fields of application for  
ultra-short pulse lasers

TRUMPF has continued technical develop-
ment of its ultra-short pulsed lasers and 
has released a new picosecond laser, the 
TruMicro 2000. The new laser can be used 
in a wide spectrum of industry applications 
ranging from high-quality metal engraving 
to cutting extremely thin films, as well as 
for corrosion-free marking of medical 
instruments and chrome-plated plastics. 
Picosecond lasers are enjoying an increas-
ingly important role in the production of 
stents used to keep blood vessels open.
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